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Registered Organisations Commission

27 April 2020

Steve Baker
Branch Secretary
The Australian Workers' Union - Queensland Branch

Sent via email: secretary@awu.org.au

CC: aaron.santelises@awu.org.au
daniel.walton@nat.awu.net.au

Dear Steve,

The Australian Workers' Union - Queensland Branch

Financial Reports for the years ended 30 June 2014 (FR2014/217), 30 June 2015
(FR2015/343), 30 June 2016 (FR2016/261) and 30 June 2017 (FR2017/207)

| acknowledge that on 2 April 2020, the Registered Organisations Commission (ROC) received
your response, including a range of financial and other documents, to my request for further
information dated 19 February 2020 concerning the administrative arrangements of the
Queensland Branch (the reporting unit) during 2014 — 2017.

As you are aware, the ROC’s concerns about the administrative arrangements of the reporting unit
include:

(a) Why the reporting unit was lodging applications under section 269 for the financial years
ended 30 June 2014 and 30 June 2015 when it has become evident that the reporting unit
did have financial affairs;

(b) What statements or claims were made in those applications which led to the then regulator,
the Fair Work Commission, issuing the section 269 certificates;

(c) What, if any, action is required to revoke the section 269 certificates for the financial years
ended 30 June 2014 and 30 June 2015;

(d) Whether an investigation or inquiry under section 330 or section 331 should be conducted
to address these issues; and

(e) What issues the reporting unit may have intentionally failed to disclose which were alluded
to in the email of 29 February 2019 from the reporting unit’s financial manager
(inadvertently provided to the ROC on 29 February 2019).

The information you have recently provided is currently the subject of assessment by staff of the
ROC and | will provide a further response once the assessment has progressed.
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Transparency for members of the AWU

For the purpose of transparency to the members of the reporting unit, | advise that we will be
uploading the following correspondence to the financial reports pages of the reporting unit for the
years 2014 — 2017 inclusive:

e this letter;
e our letters to you dated 19 February 2020 and 25 February 2020; and
e an email dated 21 February 2020 from the reporting unit to the ROC.

We consider that this approach is consistent with the practice of publishing the financial reports of
reporting units.

For ease of reference, | have attached copies of each of the documents we will be uploading on
the relevant financial report pages of the reporting unit. You will note that we have redacted parts
of our letter to you dated 19 February 2020 which relates to the email provided to the ROC
(apparently inadvertently) from the reporting units’ financial manager dated 29 February 2019.

While we review the financial and other documents you provided on 2 April 2020, we do not
propose to include them among the material uploaded to our website. However if the reporting unit
would prefer that information (or any other correspondence) be included in the materials uploaded
to the website, please provide that advice and we would be happy to consider any such request.

In the meantime, if you have any queries please contact Joanne Fenwick on (03) 9603 0731 or via
email at joanne.fenwick@roc.gov.au.

Yours sincerely

Chris Enright
Executive Director
Registered Organisations Commission
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25 February 2020

Aaron Santelises
Industrial Advocate and Legal Advisor
The Australian Workers' Union - Queensland Branch

Sent via email: aaron.santelises@awu.org.au
secretary@awu.org.au

Dear Aaron,

The Australian Workers' Union - Queensland Branch

Financial Reports for the years ended 30 June 2014 (FR2014/217), 30 June 2015
(FR2015/343), 30 June 2016 (FR2016/261) and 30 June 2017 (FR2017/207)

I acknowledge receipt of the email you sent to the Registered Organisations Commission (ROC)
financial reporting specialist on 21 February 2020.

The email was in response to the correspondence the Australian Workers’ Union Queensland
Branch (the reporting unit) received from the Executive Director of the ROC, Chris Enright, on
19 February 2020.

In your email, you have requested an extension of time to provide the ROC with the following:

1. Provide an understanding of the decision making process of the reporting unit's committee of
management which determined that a section 269 application for the financial years ended
30 June 2014 and 30 June 2015 was appropriate;

2. Provide copies of the credit card statements for the period 20 January 2014 — 7 February
2014;

3. Provide copies of pages 2 and 3 of the credit card statement for the period 8 February 2014
— 27 February 2014;

4. Provide copies of the credit card statements for the period 1 July 2016 — 17 March 2017,

5. Identify any credit card transactions during the period 20 January 2014 — 17 March 2017 that
relate to either personal use or use for another entity or person (i.e. expenditure that did not
pertain to the reporting unit); and

6. Identify any financial transactions reported in the reporting unit’s financial reports for the
periods ended 30 June 2014, 30 June 2015, 30 June 2016 and 30 June 2017 that another
entity undertook on behalf of the reporting unit.

The ROC had requested the provision of this information by Thursday 5 March 2020. Your email
requests to extend this timeframe by 8 weeks to Wednesday 29 April 2020.

In requesting this extension, you have provided information on the circumstances that the reporting
unit considers to support the granting of additional time. In reviewing this request, | have taken into
consideration this information. | have also taken into consideration that the financial reports, which
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relate to the request for information, have been prepared and audited within the last 12 months
and | would therefore assume that the records would be readily accessible and recently analysed.
Finally, | have taken into account the nature of the request to ensure that a reasonable time is
allowed for the reporting unit to review and identify any relevant transactions, balanced with the
need to ensure that these matters are progressed reasonably and resolved as soon as possible.

Based on the above, | grant the reporting unit an extension of time to provide the requested
documents and information to the ROC until Thursday 2 April 2020. | am satisfied that this four
week extension from the originally requested date is more than adequate having regard to the
nature of the above requests, and that this is still more than five weeks away.

If you have any queries please contact Joanne Fenwick on (03) 9603 0731 or via email at
joanne.fenwick@roc.gov.au.

Yours sincerely
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Patrick Coyle
Executive Director (A/g)
Registered Organisations Commission
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From: Aaron Santelises

Sent: Fri, 21 Feb 2020 17:14:03

To:

Subject: FW: The Australian Workers' Union - Queensland Branch [SEC=OFFICIAL]
Sensitivity: Normal

Attachments:

Letter to AWU QId Branch 19 Feb 2020.pd il

Dear Ms Fenwick,
We are in receipt of the enclosed correspondence dated 19 February 2020 (‘your correspondence’).

We note that you have requested a series of items and responses regarding the credit card of The Australian Workers’ Union — Queensland Branch between 2014 and 2017, and the secti o
269 of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009 (Cth) applications that were conducted for the financial years ending 30 June 2014 and 2015.

In particular, we that note the that questions you have put forward in your correspondence are in relation to matters that:
a. have occurred over four years;
b. includes a review of a substantial amount of records being the credit card statements over four years; and
c. overall, reviewing potentially records of The Australian Workers” Union —Queensland Branch over four years that are beyond the credit card statements.

In considerati on dtheite n3 aboveitis asubstantid li¢ dit em amd questios that yu have pt f orwadtos, adas sk hve requst an extension be provi &¢d wn 5pm, Wednesday, 29
April 2020.

If you have any questions about the items above, please let me know via email or (07) 3221 8844.
Kind regards,

Aaron Santelises

Industrial Advocate and Legal Advisor | The Australian Workers' Union

Level 13, 333 Adelaide Street, Brisbane QId 4000

Ph. 07 3221 8844 | Mob. 0447 332 934 | Fax. 07 3221 8700 | www.qgld.awu.net.au
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Important Notice: This email message does not constitute formal correspondence from the AWU and is for advance information purposes only. Any correspondence will be posted to you under the signature of the Branch Secretary. All formal correspondence with the AWU
must be addressed in writing to -

Steve Baker

Secretary, Queensland AWU
GPO Box 88

BRISBANE QLD 4001

This email and any files transmitted with it are confidential and intended solely for the use of the individual or entity to whom they are addressed. If you have received this email in error please notify the system manager. This message contains confidential information and is
intended only for the individual named. If you are not the named addressee you should not disseminate, distribute or copy this e-mail. Please notify the sender immediately by email if you have received this email by mistake and delete this email from your system. If you are
not the intended recipient you are notified that disclosing, copying, distributing or taking any action in reliance on the contents of this information is strictly prohibited. Warning: Although the union has taken reasonable precautions to ensure no viruses are present in this email,
the union cannot accept responsibility for any loss or damage arising from the use of this email or attachments.

Aaron Santelises

Industrial Advocate and Legal Advisor

The Australian Workers' Union Queensland

R, 1800 298 753 [] 0447 332 934

& aaron.santelises@awu.org.au 0 www.qgld.awu.net.au
ﬁ Level 13 333 Adelaide Street, Brisbane Queensland 4000
I Find us on Facebook
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From: FENWICK,Joanne <Joanne.Fenwick@roc.gov.au>

Sent: Wednesday, 19 February 2020 3:24 PM
To: Secretary AWU Queensland Branch <secretary@awu.org.au>
Subject: The Australian Workers' Union - Queensland Branch [SEC=OFFICIAL]
OFFICIAL
Dear Steven
Please find attached correspondence from the Registered Organisations Commission Executive Director, Chris Enright.

Regards

JOANNE FENWICK
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19 February 2020

Steve Baker

Secretary - QLD Branch

The Australian Workers' Union - Queensland Branch

Sent via email: secretary@awu.org.au

Dear Steve,

The Australian Workers' Union - Queensland Branch

Financial Reports for the years ended 30 June 2014 (FR2014/217), 30 June 2015
(FR2015/343), 30 June 2016 (FR2016/261) and 30 June 2017 (FR2017/207)

As you will be aware from our correspondence to you on 13 December 2019, the Registered
Organisations Commission (ROC) has filed the financial reports for the Australian Workers’ Union
Queensland Branch (the reporting unit) for the periods ended 30 June 2014, 30 June 2015, 30
June 2016 and 30 June 2017.

In the 13 December 2019 correspondence, our financial reporting specialist advised you that:

‘The ROC identified in 2017, that since 2014 the ‘Australian Workers’ Union of Employees,
Queensland’, the associated State body of the reporting unit (the associated State body),
did not encompass the reporting unit’s financial affairs, as previously asserted by the
reporting unit’.

The reporting unit had applied for and been issued with, section 269 certificates stating that the
financial affairs of the reporting unit were encompassed by the financial affairs of the associated
State body for the financial years ended 30 June 2014 and 30 June 2015. It is now apparent that
these applications did not reflect the actual administrative arrangements.

Matters for consideration

Now that the substantial work has been completed in order to provide transparency and
accountability, including our review of the draft financial reports provided by the reporting unit, and
the relevant financial reports have been filed, it is now time to turn to the issues which remain to be
resolved, including:

(a) Why the reporting unit was lodging applications under section 269 for the financial years
ended 30 June 2014 and 30 June 2015 when it is now evident that the reporting unit did
have financial affairs;

(b) What statements or claims were made in those applications which led to the then regulator,
the Fair Work Commission, issuing the section 269 certificates;

(c) What, if any, action is required to revoke the section 269 certificates for the financial years
ended 30 June 2014 and 30 June 2015;

(d) Whether an investigation or inquiry under section 330 or section 331 should be conducted
to address these issues.
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A further concern to the ROC relates to the contents of an email that our financial reporting
specialist received from the reporting unit’s Finance Manager, Mark Goodey, on 28 February 2019
following on from correspondence provided on various draft financial reports. The contents of the
email are as follows:

Steve/Jackie

... [The recent] letter [we received from the ROC’s Financial Reporting Specialist] is not a
headache surprisingly.

... [It] is a reply to what was sent [to the ROC] in November 2018, when we were
discussing the issue with Kamal and sent in draft accounts [to the ROC] as a goodwill
gesture.

It has primarily been addressed now by Hanrick Curran (Mazars), who have effectively re-
audited the accounts.

Yes | will do a final check before the revised accounts come back to us next week.

| note that there is no reference [in the ROC letter] to the credit card statements or other
documentation sent to her [the ROC'’s Financial Reporting Specialist] and that the points
raised a [sic] primarily academic disclosures. She appears a bit more cooperative than in
the past.

Subject to any [sic] coming out of the court today, with [Delegate] Enright [of the ROC] in
the witness box. | think we are dodging a bullet on these accounts which means one less
headache.

Mark

| acknowledge from its contents that the email does not appear to have been intended for the ROC
but nonetheless, it is the email’s authorship by the financial manager of the reporting unit which
potentially elevates its character to some significance. While | also acknowledge that the reporting
unit has co-operated with the ROC by providing relevant documentation in relation to our initial
inquiries into this matter, an interpretation which is open on the face of this email, is that full
disclosure into the administrative arrangements and financial affairs of the reporting unit may not
have been provided to the regulator.

| refer in particular to the penultimate and final paragraphs of the email which refer to ‘credit card
statements’ and ‘dodging a bullet on these accounts’.

Information provided to date

The reporting unit provided the ROC with copies of credit card statements, bank statements and
general ledger extracts during August 2018 and September 2018. Unfortunately the credit card
statements were incomplete. The reporting unit’s credit card was closed on 17 March 2017
however, the documentation relating to the period 1 July 2016 — 17 March 2017 was not provided
with the other documents during August and September 2018. Credit card statements for the
period 20 January 2014 — 7 February 2014 and pages 2 and 3 of the credit card statement for the
period 8 February 2014 — 27 February 2014 were also not included in the provided documents.

| can advise that the ROC has reviewed the provided credit card statements, bank statements and
general ledger extracts and undertaken a reconciliation against the reporting unit’s financial
statements for the periods ended 30 June 2014, 30 June 2015 and 30 June 2016. For each
financial year the expenditure total reported in the financial statements did not match the
transaction totals within the credit card statements provided.

Seeking further assistance

As | have indicated above, a number of issues remain to be resolved, including whether an inquiry
or investigation under section 330 or section 331 should be conducted. In order to assist the ROC
to make an informed decision on the course of action to follow, if any, under section 330 or 331, |
am seeking your assistance in understanding the administrative arrangements of the reporting unit
during 2014 — 2017. In particular, | would appreciate if you could:





1. Provide an understanding of the decision making process of the reporting unit’s committee
of management which determined that a section 269 application for the financial years
ended 30 June 2014 and 30 June 2015 was appropriate;

2. Provide copies of the credit card statements for the period 20 January 2014 — 7 February
2014;

3. Provide copies of pages 2 and 3 of the credit card statement for the period 8 February 2014
— 27 February 2014;

4. Provide copies of the credit card statements for the period 1 July 2016 — 17 March 2017;

5. Identify any credit card transactions during the period 20 January 2014 — 17 March 2017
that relate to either personal use or use for another entity or person (i.e. expenditure that
did not pertain to the reporting unit); and

6. ldentify any financial transactions reported in the reporting unit’s financial reports for the
periods ended 30 June 2014, 30 June 2015, 30 June 2016 and 30 June 2017 that another
entity undertook on behalf of the reporting unit.

| request that this information be to the ROC at regorgs@roc.gov.au by Thursday 5 March 2020.

If you have any queries regarding this letter in the interim, please contact Joanne Fenwick on (03)
9603 0731 or via email at joanne.fenwick@roc.gov.au.

Yours sincerely

Chris Enright
Executive Director
Registered Organisations Commission
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Financial Reporting Specialist
Registered Organisations Commission

Tel: (03) 9603 0731 414 La Trobe Street, Melbourne VIC 3000
joanne.fenwick@roc.gov.au GPO Box 2983, Melbourne VIC 3001
Did you know? We have a free email subscription service to send out important updates and r letters.

Australian Government

Registered Organisations Commission

Please consider the environment before printing this message.

Notice:

The information contained in this email message and any attached files may be confidential information, and may also be the subject of legal professional privilege. If you are not the
intended recipient any use, disclosure or copying of this email is unauthorised. If you received this email in error, please notify the sender by contacting the department's switchboard on
1300 488 064 during business hours (8:30am - 5pm Canberra time) and delete all copies of this transmission together with any attachments.
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19 February 2020

Steve Baker

Secretary - QLD Branch

The Australian Workers' Union - Queensland Branch

Sent via email: secretary@awu.org.au

Dear Steve,

The Australian Workers' Union - Queensland Branch

Financial Reports for the years ended 30 June 2014 (FR2014/217), 30 June 2015
(FR2015/343), 30 June 2016 (FR2016/261) and 30 June 2017 (FR2017/207)

As you will be aware from our correspondence to you on 13 December 2019, the Registered
Organisations Commission (ROC) has filed the financial reports for the Australian Workers’ Union
Queensland Branch (the reporting unit) for the periods ended 30 June 2014, 30 June 2015, 30
June 2016 and 30 June 2017.

In the 13 December 2019 correspondence, our financial reporting specialist advised you that:

‘The ROC identified in 2017, that since 2014 the ‘Australian Workers’ Union of Employees,
Queensland’, the associated State body of the reporting unit (the associated State body),
did not encompass the reporting unit’s financial affairs, as previously asserted by the
reporting unit’.

The reporting unit had applied for and been issued with, section 269 certificates stating that the
financial affairs of the reporting unit were encompassed by the financial affairs of the associated
State body for the financial years ended 30 June 2014 and 30 June 2015. It is now apparent that
these applications did not reflect the actual administrative arrangements.

Matters for consideration

Now that the substantial work has been completed in order to provide transparency and
accountability, including our review of the draft financial reports provided by the reporting unit, and
the relevant financial reports have been filed, it is now time to turn to the issues which remain to be
resolved, including:

(a) Why the reporting unit was lodging applications under section 269 for the financial years
ended 30 June 2014 and 30 June 2015 when it is now evident that the reporting unit did
have financial affairs;

(b) What statements or claims were made in those applications which led to the then regulator,
the Fair Work Commission, issuing the section 269 certificates;

(c) What, if any, action is required to revoke the section 269 certificates for the financial years
ended 30 June 2014 and 30 June 2015;

(d) Whether an investigation or inquiry under section 330 or section 331 should be conducted
to address these issues.

GPO Box 2983, Melbourne VIC 3001
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A further concern to the ROC relates to the contents of an email that our financial reporting
specialist received from the reporting unit’'s Finance Manager, Mark Goodey, on 28 February 2019
following on from correspondence provided on various draft financial reports. The contents of the
email are as follows:

| acknowledge from its contents that the email does not appear to have been intended for the ROC
but nonetheless, it is the email’s authorship by the financial manager of the reporting unit which
potentially elevates its character to some significance. While | also acknowledge that the reporting
unit has co-operated with the ROC by providing relevant documentation in relation to our initial
inquiries into this matter, an interpretation which is open on the face of this email, is that full
disclosure into the administrative arrangements and financial affairs of the reporting unit may not
have been provided to the regulator.

| refer in particular to the penultimate and final paragraphs of the email which refer to | N
I -

Information provided to date

The reporting unit provided the ROC with copies of credit card statements, bank statements and
general ledger extracts during August 2018 and September 2018. Unfortunately the credit card
statements were incomplete. The reporting unit’s credit card was closed on 17 March 2017
however, the documentation relating to the period 1 July 2016 — 17 March 2017 was not provided
with the other documents during August and September 2018. Credit card statements for the
period 20 January 2014 — 7 February 2014 and pages 2 and 3 of the credit card statement for the
period 8 February 2014 — 27 February 2014 were also not included in the provided documents.

| can advise that the ROC has reviewed the provided credit card statements, bank statements and
general ledger extracts and undertaken a reconciliation against the reporting unit’s financial
statements for the periods ended 30 June 2014, 30 June 2015 and 30 June 2016. For each
financial year the expenditure total reported in the financial statements did not match the
transaction totals within the credit card statements provided.

Seeking further assistance

As | have indicated above, a number of issues remain to be resolved, including whether an inquiry
or investigation under section 330 or section 331 should be conducted. In order to assist the ROC
to make an informed decision on the course of action to follow, if any, under section 330 or 331, |
am seeking your assistance in understanding the administrative arrangements of the reporting unit
during 2014 — 2017. In particular, | would appreciate if you could:



1. Provide an understanding of the decision making process of the reporting unit’'s committee
of management which determined that a section 269 application for the financial years
ended 30 June 2014 and 30 June 2015 was appropriate;

2. Provide copies of the credit card statements for the period 20 January 2014 — 7 February
2014;

3. Provide copies of pages 2 and 3 of the credit card statement for the period 8 February 2014
— 27 February 2014;

4. Provide copies of the credit card statements for the period 1 July 2016 — 17 March 2017;

5. Identify any credit card transactions during the period 20 January 2014 — 17 March 2017
that relate to either personal use or use for another entity or person (i.e. expenditure that
did not pertain to the reporting unit); and

6. ldentify any financial transactions reported in the reporting unit’s financial reports for the
periods ended 30 June 2014, 30 June 2015, 30 June 2016 and 30 June 2017 that another
entity undertook on behalf of the reporting unit.

| request that this information be to the ROC at regorgs@roc.gov.au by Thursday 5 March 2020.

If you have any queries regarding this letter in the interim, please contact Joanne Fenwick on (03)
9603 0731 or via email at joanne.fenwick@roc.gov.au.

Yours sincerely

Chris Enright
Executive Director
Registered Organisations Commission
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13 December 2019

Steve Baker
Secretary - QLD Branch
The Australian Workers' Union - Queensland Branch

Sent via email: secretary@awu.org.au
CC: mark.goodey@awu.org.au
Matthew.Green@hanrickcurran.com.au

Dear Steve,

The Australian Workers' Union - Queensland Branch

Financial Reports for the years ended 30 June 2014 (FR2014/217), 30 June 2015
(FR2015/343), 30 June 2016 (FR2016/261) and 30 June 2017 (FR2017/207)

| refer to the abovementioned financial reports for the Australian Workers’ Union Queensland
Branch (the reporting unit) which have been the subject of ongoing discussions between the
Registered Organisations Commission (the ROC) and the reporting unit since 2017.

The ROC identified in 2017, that since 2014 the ‘Australian Workers’ Union of Employees,
Queensland’, the associated State body of the reporting unit (the associated State body), did not
encompass the reporting unit’s financial affairs, as previously asserted by the reporting unit. The
reporting unit had applied for and was issued with, section 269 certificates stating that the financial
affairs of the reporting unit were encompassed by the financial affairs of the associated State Body
for the financial years ended 30 June 2014 and 30 June 2015. It is now apparent that these
applications did not reflect the actual administrative arrangements.

The ROC has reviewed a number of draft financial reports for the abovementioned financial years
with a final signed copy of these reports, that have been provided to members and presented to a
meeting, lodged with the ROC on 11 April 2019.

The financial reports have now been filed. You are not required to take any further action in respect
of the reports lodged.

Please note that the filing of these financial reports does not limit the ROC from making further
enquiries into (or taking further action regarding) the administrative arrangements and state of
affairs of the reporting unit during this time, and in particular, the information provided by the
reporting unit in its initial section 269 applications for the years ended 30 June 2014 and 30 June
2015. Accordingly, we will correspond with you further regarding those issues.

If you have any queries regarding this letter in the interim, please contact me on (03) 9603 0731 or
via email at joanne.fenwick@roc.gov.au.

Yours sincerely

Joanne Fenwick
Financial Reporting Specialist
Registered Organisations Commission

GPO Box 2983, Melbourne VIC 3001
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The Australian Workers’ Union, Queensland Branch
ABN: 95635 872 984

Financial Statements

For the Year Ended 30 June 2014
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Designated Officer's Certificate
30 June 2014

I, Stephen Kenneth Baker being the Branch Secretary of The Australian Workers' Union, Queensland Branch (Branch),
do hereby certify that:

(a) the documents ledged herewith are copies of the Branch report for The Australian Workers' Union Queensland
Branch for the period ended 30 June 2014 referred to in seclion 268 of the Fair Work (Registered
Organisations) Acf 2009; and

(b) the Branch report was provided o members of the Branch on 11 March 2019; and

(c) the Branch report was presenled to a meeting of the Committee of Management on 2™ April 2019, in
accordance with section 266 of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations} Act 2009,

L
Stephe nneth Baker
Branch Secrelary

Date: 2™ April 2019

Brisbane, Queensland




Operating Report
30 June 2014

The Committee of Management {Committee) presents the Branch reporl for the financial year ended 30 June 2014.

Names of members of the Committee

The following were members of the Committee as at for the entire reporting period unless indicated otherwise:

Mr B Swan Mr D Bulow Mr P Gunsberger Mr T Spence
Mr K Ballin Mr A Beers Mr P Roberison Mr T Sullivan
Ms T Sharpe Mr S Baker Mr R. Stockham Ms M Chambers (nee Wilkams)

Ali the members above are elected officers of the Branch conducted in accordance with the provisions of the Fair Work
{(Registered Organisations) Act 2009 and the rules of the organisation.

Review of principal activities, the results of those activities and any significant changes in the nature of those
activities during the year

The principal activities of the Branch continued to be branch activities of a registered trade union working for the benefit
of its members through negotiating enterprise bargaining agreements, varying awards, representing members before
industrial tribunals, training of delegates and members in workplace health and safety, workplace organising,
recruitment and public promotion of the interests of members.

The branch activities include Branch travel and accommodation, functions and events, donations, meetings, filing fees
and administration. The Branch operates a bank account and a credit card facility with the Commonwealth Bank of
Australia which it uses to settle payments made in relation to these activities. The State Union is not a registered
organisation under the Fair Work (Registered Organisatlions) Act 2009.

Prior to the year ended 30" June 2014, the branch was not considered to be a separate reporting unit.

Significant changes in financial affairs

The Branch made a profit for the year of $10,764. With this exception, there were no other significant changes to the
financial affairs of the Branch during the year.

Right of members to resign

The right of Union members to resign from the Queensland Branch is set out in Rule 14 of The Australian Workers'
Union Rules as registered under the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009 which states as follows:

1. A member may resign membership of the Union by notice in writing. Notice addressed to an Officer of the
relevant Branch of the Union must be signed by the member and provided to the Union by mail, facsimile,
email or in person.

2. A notice of resignation that has been received by an Officer of the Branch of the Union is not invalidated by
reason of the fact that is has not been addressed and delivered in accordance with sub-rule {1) if the member
is informed in writing by the Union that the resignation has been accepted.

3. Resignation or notice of resignation does not lessen the member's obligation to pay to the Union any sum
which becomes payable prior to the members resignation.

4. A notice of resignation of membership takes effect:

(a) Where the member ceases to be eligible to become a member of the Union:
i. on the day on which the notice is received; or
ii. onthe day specified in the notice which is a day not earlier than the day when the member

ceases to be eligible to become a member
whichever is the later; or

{b) In any other case:
i. atthe end of two weeks after the notice is received; or
ii. onthe day specified in the notice

whichever is the later.




Operating Report (continued)
30 June 2014

Officers & employees who are Superannuation fund trustee(s) or director of a company that is a
Superannuation fund trustee

Those who hold a position or trustee or director of any entity, scheme or company as described in section 254(2)(d) of
the Fair Work {Registered Qrganisations) Act 2009, where a criterion of such an entity is that the holder of such position
must be a member or an official of a registered organisation are as follows:

Mr W Ludwig Director of Sunsuper Ply Ltd Resigned: 8 July 2013

Mr B Swan Director of Sunsuper Pty Ltd Appointed: 8 July 2013
Director of AustSafe Pty Lid Resigned: 31 October 2013

Mr G Ryan Director of AustSafe Pty Ltd Resigned: 1 July 2013

Ms C Mullen Director of AustSafe Pty Ltd Appointed: 31 October 2013

Mr R Boscacci  Director of AustSafe Pty Lid Resigned: 12 December 2013

Ms T Sharpe Director of AustSafe Pty Ltd Appointed: 12 December 2013

Mr T Spence Director of Aust (Q) Super Resigned: 31 December 2013
Director of Allied Unions Superannuation Trust Board Resigned: 1 January 2014
Chair of Australian Super Qld Advisory Board Appoinled: 20 March 2014

Mr K Ballin Director of AusiSafe Pty Lid Appointed:; 01 July 2009

Number of members

Members who join the Australian Workers’ Union of Employees Queensland (State Union) simultaneously become
members of the Branch. The number of persons held in the register of members as at the end of the financial year
who were financial members were 32,494 (2013: 33,439) and unfinancial members were 17,183 (2013: 12,687).
Number of employees

The Branch does not employ any staff members directly. Branch activilies underiaken by the Branch use the resources
of the State Union.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Committee:

Stephen-Kenneth Baker
Branch Secretary

Date: 11 March 2019

Brisbane, Queensland




YIEE M A Z AR S

Auditor's Independence Declaration to the Committee of The Australian Workers’ Union,
Queensland Branch

I declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, during the year ended 30 June 2014, there have been:

(i} no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements as set out in the APES 110 Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants in relation to the audit; and

(i) no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

Mazars Audit (QLD) Pty Limited
Authorised Audit Company: 338599

Matt reen
Ditecto,
Brisbane, 2 April 2018

Registration number (as registered by the RO Commissioner under the RO Act): AAZ017/147
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MAZARS AUDIT (QLD) PTY LIMITED
{FORMERLY HANRICK CURRAN AUDIT}
AUTHORISED AUDIT COMPANY: 338599  ABN: 13132902188
LEVEL 11, 307 QUEEN STREET, BRISBANE QLD 4000  GPO BOX 2268, BRISBANE QLD 4001 e
TEL: +617 328 3900 - FAX: +617 3218 3901 . .
Praxity:

LIABILITY LIMITED B¥Y A SCHEME, APPROVED UNDER THE PROFESSIONAL STANDARDS LEGISLATION




Committee of Management Statement
30 June 2014

On the 11 March 2019, the Executive Commiltee of The Australian Workers' Union, Queensland Branch passed the
following resolution in relation to the general purpose financial report of the Branch for the year ended 30 June 2014:

The Commitlee declares that in its opinion:

() the financial statements and notes comply with Australian Accounting Standards;

{b) the financial statements and notes cornply with the reporting guidelines of the Commissioner of the Registered
Organisations Commission;

{c) the financial stalements and notes give a true and fair view of the financial performance, financial position and
cash flows of the reporting unit for the financial year to which they relate;

{d) there are reasonable grounds to believe that the reporting unit will be able to pay its debts as and when they
become due and payable;

(e) during the financial year to which the general purpose financial report relates and since the end of that year:

M

®

(ii)
(i)
(iv)
{v)

{vi}

no

meetings of the Committee were held in accordance with the rules of the arganisation including the rules
of a branch concerned;

the financial affairs of the reporting unit have been managed in accordance with the rules of the
organisation including the rules of a branch concerned;

the financial records of the reporting unit have been kept and maintained in accordance with the Fair
Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009;

the financial records of the reporting unit have been kept, as far as practicable, in a consistent manner
with each of the other reporting units of the organisation;

where information has been sought in any request by a member of the reperting unit or Commissioner
duly made under section 272 of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009 has been provided
to the member or Commissioner; and

where any order for inspection of firancial records has been made by the Fair Work Commiission under
section 273 of the Fair Work {Registered Organisations) Act 2009, there has been compliance; and

revenue has been derived by the Branch from undertaking any recovery of wages activity during the

financial year ending 30 June 2014.

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the Committee of Management.

Step

——ee e

-Kenneth Baker
Branch Secretary

Date: 11 March 2019

Brisbane, Queensland




Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the Year Ended 30 June 2014

Revenue

Capitation fees and other revenue from another reporting unit
Compulsory Levies

Contributions received

Interest

Total revenue

Expenses

Capitation fees and other expenses from another reporting unit
Affiliation fees

Levies

Administration expenses

Grants or donations

Lega! costs

Cther

Total expenses

Profit (loss) for the period before tax

Income tax expense
Profit/(loss) for the period
Other comprehensive income for the period

Items that will not he reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Gain on revaluation of land and buildings

Total comprehensive income for the period

2014
Note $
2(a) 116,326
2(b) 241
116,567
3(a) 9,708
3(b} 52,500
3(c) 1,734
3(d} 41,861
105,803
10,764
10,764
10,764




Statement of Financial Position
As at 30 June 2014

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Trade and other receivables
Receivables from another reporting unit
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES

Membership deductions subscriptions
Employee provisions

Legal costs

Payable to another reporting unit
Trade payables

Other payables

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET ASSETS

EQUITY

General funds
Retained earnings
TOTAL EQUITY

Note

4{a)
4{b)
4(c)

5(a)
5(b)

13

2014

6,792
5,949

12,741

12,741

1,977
1,977
1,977
10,764

10,764
10,764




Statement of Changes in Equity
For the Year Ended 30 June 2014

Balance as at 1 July 2013
Profit (loss) for the year

Balance as at 30 June 2014

Retained Earnings Total
$ $
10,764 10,764
10,764 10,764




Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended 30 June 2014

2014
Note $

OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash received
Interest received 241
Contribution received from the Australian Workers’ Union of Employees
Queensland 116,326
Cash flow from other reporting units -
Cash used
Payments to suppliers (109,775}
Net cash from (used by) operating activities 12(a) 6.792
Net i d i h hel

et increase (decrease) in cash held 6.792

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the reporting pericd -
Cash and cash equivalents at end of reporting period 4(a) 6,792




Receipts and Payments for Recovery of Wages
For the Year Ended 30 June 2014

Cash assets in respect of recovery money at beginning of year
Receipts

Amount recovered from employers in respect of wages etc.

Interest received on recovered money

Total Receipts

Payments

Deductions of amounts due in respect of membership for:

- 12 months or less

- greater than 12 months

Deductions of donations or other contributions to accounts or funds of:
- the union

- other entity

Deductions of fees or reimbursements of expenses

Payments to workers in respect of recovered money

Total Payments

Cash assets in respect of recovery money at end of year
Numbers of workers to which the monies recovered relates to

Aggregate payable to workers attributable to recovered monies but
not yet distributed

Payable balance
Number of workers the payable relates to
Fund or account operated for recovery of wages

2014
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 June 2014

1

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(a}

(b}

{c)

(d)

Basis of preparation

The financial statements are general purpose financial statements that have been prepared in accordance
with the Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued by the Australian Accounting
Standards Board {AASB) that apply for the reporting pericd and the Fair Work (Registered Organisations)
Act 2009. For the purpose of preparing the general purpose financial statements, the Branch is a
not-for-profit entity.

Australian Accounting Standards set out accounting policies that the AASB has concluded would result in
a financial report containing relevant and reliable information about transactions, events and conditions tc
which they apply. Compliance with Australian Accounting Standards ensures that the financial statements
and notes also comply with International Financial Reporting Standards. Material accounting policies
adopted in the preparation of this financial report are presented below. They have been consistently applied
unless otherwise stated.

The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and in accordance with historical costs,
except for certain assets and liabilities at measured at fair value as explained in the accounting policies
below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair values of the consideration given in exchange for
assets. Except where stated, no allowance is made for the effect of changing prices on the results or the
financial position. The financial statements are presented in Australian dollars.

In accordance with arrangements between the Australian Workers' Union of Employees Queensland (State
Union) and the Branch, the latter performs limited activities and functions. Accordingly, these financial
statements have been prepared on the basis of reflecting those limited activities and functions for which
the Branch is respansible. In addition, the activities anly commenced in the financial year ended 30 June
2014. As a result, there are no comparatives.

Going concern

In accordance with arrangements between the Branch and the State Union and as further detailed in Note
1{h), the State Union makes contributions as required to Branch to allow the Branch to undertake its
activilies and continue as a going concern.

In addition, and as detailed on Note 11, the Branch has ceased undertaking the activities referred to in the
Operating Report subsequent to balance date. Accordingly, the Committee is of the opinion that the Branch
will be ahle fo pay its debts as and when they fall due.

The Branch's ability to continue as a going concern is not reliant on the financial support of another
reporting unit and no other reporting unit has agreed to provide financial support to the Branch concerning
its ability to continue as a going concern.

Comparative amounts

When required by Accounting Standards, comparatives figures have been adjusted to conform to changes
in presentation for the current financial year.

Significant accounting judgements and estimates

The Branch evaluates estimates and judgements incorporated into the financial report based on historical
knowledge and best available current information. Estimates assume a reasonable expectation of future
events and are based on current trends and economic data.

The Branch assesses impairment at each reporting date by evaluating conditions specific to the Branch
that may lead to impairment of assets. Where an impairment trigger exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is determined. No impairment has been recognised in respect of the current year (2013: Nil).

No other accounting judgements and estimates have been applied in the preparation of the financial report.

11




Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 June 2014

1

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(e}

U

(g}

(h)

Income tax

The Branch is exempt from income tax by virtue of s50-45 of the Income Tax Assessment Act 1997.

Cash

Cash is recognised at its nominal amount. Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and deposits
held at call with the bank.
Financial instruments

The Branch is not exposed to any material financial risks through the use of financial instruments. The
principal categories of financial instruments used by the Branch are the following:

¢ Cash
+ Trade receivables
¢« Borrowing from the Australian Workers' Union of Employees Queensland

The Branch is not exposed to material liquidity or market risk in respect of the above financial instruments.
It has policies in place to ensure that it has sufficient cash to allow it io meet its obligations when they
become due and payable.

Cash is held with an Australian bank. Where cash flows allow, these amounts are held on deposit. The
risk of changes in interest rates affecting future cash flows is not considered material. Any credit risk
attaching to counterparties is also considered immaterial.

Revenue and other income

Members who join the Australian Workers' Union of Employees Queensland (State Union) simultaneously
become members of the Branch. Membership subscriptions and fees derived by the State Unicn are not
recorded in the Branch.

Interest revenue is recognised on a proportional basis, taking into account the interest rate applicable to
the financial assets.

The Branch did not receive any capitation fees, levies, donations and grants from any third parties.

Contribution income received from The Australian Workers' Union of Employees Queensland (State Union}
is recognised as received. Monies received from the State Union are reported on the basis that:

= Monies are provided by the State Unicn to allow the Branch to undertake certain activities in
accordance with the arrangements between the State Union and Branch; and

» There is no expectation by either the State Unicn or Branch that any of these monies are to be
repaid.

12




Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended 30 June 2014

1

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

2
(i} New and amended standards and interpretations

)]

The following new and amended standards and interpretations that could impact the Union and are
mandatory for the first time for the financial year beginning 1 July 2013 are as follows:

s  AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement

* AASB 119 Employee Benefits

=  AASB 2012-5 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from Annual
Improvements 2009-2011 Cycle.

The adoption of these standards and interpretations did not have any material impact on the current or any
prior period and is not likely to materially affect future periods.

New and amended standards and interpretations not yet adopted

The AASB has issued new and amended Accounting Standards and Interpretations that have mandatory
application dates for future reporting periods. The Branch has decided not to early adopt these Standards.
The following table summarises those future requirements and their impact on the Branch where the

standard is relevant:

New/Revised Nature of change Impact

Pranocuncements

AASH 9 Financial | The AASB has issued the complete AASB 9. | The Union has not yet
Instruments The new standard includes revised guidance | fully assessed the impact

{application date 30 June
2020}

aon the classification and measurement of
financial assets, including a new expected
credit loss model for calculating impairment,
and supplements the new general hedge
accounting requirements previously
published. This supersedes AASB 9 (issued
in December 2009-as amended) and AASB 9
(issued in December 2010).

of AASB 9 as this
standard does not yet
apply mandatorily.

AASB 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers

(application date 30 June
2020)

The standard contains a single mode! that
applies to contracts with customers and two
approaches to recoegnising revenue: at a point
in time or over time. The model features a
contract-based  five-step  analysis  of
transactions to determine whether, how much
and when revenue is recognised.

The Union has not yet
determined the
magnitude of any
changes which may be
needed.

AASB 16 Leases

{Not applicable to AWU, QLD
Branch)

Significant revisions to accounting for
operational leases on balance sheet by
lessees of property and high value equipment.
However, exemptions for short-term leases
and leases of low value assets will reduce the
impact.

The Union has not yet
determined the
magnitude of any
changes which may be
needed.

AASB 1058 Income of Not-
for-Profit Entities

(application date 30 June
2020}

AASB 1058 replaces the income recognition
requirements relating to private sector not-for-
prafit (NFP) entities, as well as the majority of
income recognition requirements relating to
public sector NFP entities previously reflected
in AASB 1004 Contributicns.

The Union has not yet
determined the
magnitude of any
changes which may be
needed.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 June 2014

2014
$
2, Income
(a) Contribution income
The Australian Workers’ Union of Employees,
Queensland 116,326
Total contribution received 116,326
{b} Interest
Deposit 241
Total interest 241

The Branch did not receive any membership fees from members, capitation fees, levies, donations and grants from
any third parties. Accordingly, there are no compulsory or voluntary contributions which have been invested in any
assets. The Branch did receive financial support from the State Union.

The Branch did not receive any financial support from ancother reparting unit during the year.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 June 2014

3. Expenses

(a)

(b)

(c)

()

Administration expenses
Other

Total administration expense

Grants or donations
Grants

Total paid that were $1,000 or less

Total paid that exceeded $1,000
Donations

Total paid that were $1,000 or less
Total paid that exceeded $1,000 *

Total grants or donations
Legal costs

Litigation

Other legal matters

Total legal costs

Other expenses

Penalties (via the Fair Work (Registered Organisations)

Act 2009

Functions and events
License fees

Motor vehicle expense

Sundry expenses (including audit fees)

Advertising
Training and courses

Travel and accommodation
Total other expenses

2014

9,708

9,708

52,500

52,500

1,734

1,734

4,000
127
11,847
1,531
6,647
7,800
9,909

41,861

The Branch did not incur any expenses as consideration for employers making payroll deductions from
membership subscriptions, employee expenses, fees, allowances or expenses for attendance at meetings or
conferences, pay any capitation or affiliation fees, or any levies to third parties. The Branch did receive financial
support from the State Union.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 June 2014

2014
$
4. Current Assets
{a} Cash and cash equivalents
Cash at bank * 6,792
Total cash and cash equivalents 6,792

* The Branch operates a bank account and a credit card facility with the Commonwealth Bank of Australia. These
facilities are used to settle financial cormmitments incurred by the Branch.

(b}  Trade and other receivables

Other receivables
GST receivable from the Australian Taxation Office 5,949
Provision for doubtful debts -

Total trade and other receivables 5,949

5. Current Liabilities

(a) Trade payables
Trade creditors and accruals -

Total trade payables -

(b} Other payables

Other 1,977
Total other payables 1,977
Total trade and other payables 1,977

The Branch does not have any receivable or payable balances with any reporting unit as at the end of the financial
year.

The Branch does not employ either staff or officeholders, and consequently does not have any outstanding annual
leave, long service leave, separation and/or redundancy or other employee provisions as at the end of the financial
year.

The Branch does not have any outstanding legal costs, litigation or other matters, payable to any third parties as at the
end of the financial year.

As the Branch did not incur any expenses in consideration for employers making payroll deductions of membership
subscriptions, there are no amounts owing to employers as at the end of the financial year. Further there are no
outstanding legal costs and expenses relating to litigation and other legal matters as at the end of the financial year.

The Branch did not acquire an asset or a liability during the financial year as a result of an amalgamation or a restructure
of branches of the Branch, or as stated elsewhere in the financial report, the provision of financial supporl received
from ancther reporting unit.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 June 2014

2014
6. KeyManagement Personnel Disclosures

The totals of remuneration paid to the key management personnel of the Branch during the year are as follows:

Short-term employee benefits

Salary (including annual leave taken) -
Annual leave accrued -
Performance benus -
Total short-term employee benefits -

Long-term employee benefits
Long-service leave -

Post-employment benefits

Superannuation -
Retirement provision -
Total long-term employee benefits -

Employee provisions
Officeholders -
Employees other than officeholders -

Total employee provisions -

7. Related Party Disclosures
Borrowing from related parties

Total borrowing from related parties -
Loans to related parties (receivables from other reporting units) -

Total loans to related parties -

During the year the Branch did not make a payment to a former related party of the reporting unit.
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Financial Risk Management

The Branch is not exposed to material financial risks through its use of financial instruments. This note
discloses the Branch's objectives, policies and processes for managing and measuring these risks. The
Branch does not speculate in financial assets.

Financial instruments used

The principal categories of financial instrument used by the Branch are:

. Trade receivables
. Cash at bank
. Trade and other payables

Specific information regarding the mitigation of each financial risk to which the Branch is exposed is provided
below.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk arises from the Branch’s management of working capital. It is the risk that the Branch will
encounter difficulty in meeting its financial cbligations as they fall due.

The Branch’s policy is to ensure that it will always have sufficient cash to allow it to meet its liabilities when
they become due. Funding for short and long-term liquidity needs is additionally available through related
parties.

The Branch's liabilities are current and are either expected to be settled with in normal trade terms (i.e., 30
days) or are at call liabilities.

Market risk

The Branch’s exposure to market risk is limited to cash on deposit with Australian banks. Cash is deposited
in floating rate, at-call accounts, where the risk of changes in interest rates affecting future cash flows is not
considered material.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in a financial
loss to the Branch

The credit risk for liquid funds and other short-term financial assets is considered negligible, since the
counterparties are reputable banks with high quality external credit ratings.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended 30 June 2014

9.

10.

11.

Remuneration of Auditors

Value of the services provided

Audit services — financial statements 1,000
Other services -
Total remuneration of auditors 1,000

Section 272 Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009

In accordance with the requirements of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations} Act 2009, the attention of
members is drawn to the provisions of subsections (1} to (3) of section 272, which reads as follows:

Infarmation to be provided to members or the Commissioner of the Registered Organisations Commission:

{1} A member of a reporting unit, or the Commissicner of the Registered Organisations Commission, may apply
to the reporting unit for specified prescribed information in relation to the reporting unit to be made available
to the person making the application.

{2) The application must be in writing and must specify the period within which, and the manner in which, the
information is to be made available. The period must not be less than 14 days after the application is given to
the reporting unit.

{3) A reporting unit must comply with an application made under subsection {1).

Events Occurring After the Reporting Date
The financial report was authorised for issue on 11 March 2019 by the Committee.
The Branch has ceased underiaking the activities referred to in the Operaling Report subsequent to balance date.

Apart from the above no other matters have come to our attention that would significantly affect the operations of
the Branch.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 June 2014

2014

12, Cash Flow Information

13

14

15

{a) Reconciliation of result for the year to cash flows from operating activities

Reconciliation of net income to net cash provided by operating activities
Profit (loss) for the year 10,764

Cash flows excluded from profit {loss) attributable to
operating activities
Non-cash flows in profit {loss)

- depreciation -
- net gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment -
Changes in assets and liabilities

- {increase)decrease in trade and other receivables (5,949)
- (increase)/decrease in prepayments -
- increase/(decrease) in income in advance -
- increasef(decrease) in trade and other payables -
- increasef/(decrease) in other creditors/accruals 1,977

hfl f ti
Cash flows from operations 6,792

The Branch has not received or paid any capitation fees to another reporting unit.

The Branch has not received any financial support from a reporting unit or controlled entity and has not provided
any financial support to any reporting unit or controlled entity.

General Funds

Compulsory levy / voluntary contribution -

There were no funds held during the financial year. Furthermare, there were no transfers to and/or withdrawals
from any fund or account. No monies from a fund or account have been invested in assets during the financial
year.

Branch Details

The principal places of business is Level 13, 333 Adelaide Street, Brisbane, Queensland, 4000.

Segment Information

The Branch operates solely in one reporting business segment being the provision of trade union services. The
Branch operates from one reportable geographical segment being Australia.
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YIBRd M A ZARS

Independent Audit Report to the members of The Australian Workers’ Union, Queensiand Branch

Report on the Financial Report

We have audited the accompanying financial report of The Australian Workers’ Union, Queensland Branch, which
comprises the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2014, the statement of comprehensive income, statement
of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, notes comprising a summary of significant
accounting policies and other exptanatory information, and the statement by the Committee of Management.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Report

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in accordance with
Australian Accounting Standards and Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2008, and for such intemmal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation and fair presentation of the financial report that is free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Cur responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Those standards require that we comply with relevant ethical
requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial report is free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in order to
design audit procedures that are approgriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Matters Relating to the Electronic Presentation of the Audited Financial Report

This auditor's report relates to the financial report of the Branch for the year ended 30 June 2014 included on the State
Union's website. The Branch's Committee of Management is responsible for the integrity of the State Union's website.
We have not been engaged to report on the integrity of this website.

The auditor's report refers only to the subject matter described above. It does not provide an opinion on any other
information which may have been hyperlinked to/from these statements. If users of this report are concerned with the
inherent risks arising from publication on a website, they are advised to refer to the hard copy of the audited financial
report to confirm the information contained in this website version of the financial report.

Declarations
| declare that | am an approved auditor as defined in the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009.

| declare that | am a member of the Chartered Accountants in Australia and New Zealand and hold a Current Public
Practice Certificate.

MAZARS AUDIT {(QLD) PTY LIMITED

(FORMERLY HANRICK CURRAN AUDIT)

AUTHORISED AUDIT COMPANY: 338599 ABN: 13132902 188

LEVEL 11, 307 QUEEN STREET, BRISBANE QLD 4000 GPO BOX 2268, BRISBANE QLD 4001 ,
TEL: +617 3218 3600 - FAX: +617 3218 3901 Prax,i’y .

LIABILITY LIMITED BY A SCHEME, APPROVED UNDER THE PROFESSIONAL STANDARDS LEGISLATION




YIBME M A Z ARS

Independent Audit Report to the members of The Australian Workers’ Union, Queensland Branch {continued)
Opinion

In my opinion, the financial report presents fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of The Australian
Workers' Union, Queensland Branch, as at 30 June 2014, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and Fair Work (Registered QOrganisations} Act 2009,

{a) The financial statements of The Australian Workers’ Union, Queensiand Branch are in accordance with the Fair
Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009 including:
{i) giving a true and fair view of the Union's financial position as at 30 June 2014 and of its performance for
the year ended on that date; and
(i) complying with Australian Accounting Standards.

{b} The financial report also complies with International Financial Reporting Standards as detailed in Note 1.
{c} The Branch has kept satisfactory accounting records for the financial year including records of:
(i) the sources and nature of the Union's income, including membership subscriptions and other income

from members; and
(i} the nature of and reasons for the Union's expenditure.

{d) All the information and explanations that officers or employees of the Branch were required to provide have been
provided;

(e) There was no deficiency, failure or shortcoming in any matters referred to;
{f} No recovery of wages activity occurred during the reporting period; and

{g) The Branch’s use of the going concern basis of accounting used in their preparation of the Branch’s financial
statements is appropriate.

Emphasis of Matter — Reissued Auditor’s Report

Without medifying our opinion, we draw aitention to this matter. We previously issued an audit opinion in relation to
this financial repert, dated 23 November 2017. Subsequent to the issue of our audit report, management have been
instructed to amend and relodge this report with the Registered Organisations Commission. This audit report
supersedes the previously issued audit report.

Maz s Aovrr (Q LDJ

Mazars Audit (QLD) Pty Limited
Authorised Audit Company: 338599

Brisbane, 2 April 2019

Registration number (as registered by the RO Commissioner under the RO Act): AA2017/147
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*  Australian Government

Registered Organisations Commission

28 February 2019

Mr Steven Baker

Secretary

The Australian Workers’ Union, Queensland Branch
333 Adelaide Street

BRISBANE QLD 4000

via email: secretary@awu.org.au
michael.georghiou@hanrickcurran.com.au
mark.goodey@awu.org.au

Dear Mr Baker,

The Australian Workers’ Union Queensland Branch Financial Report for the year ended 30
June 2018 - [FR2018/203]

The Australian Workers’ Union Queensland Branch (the reporting unit) provided the Registered
Organisations Commission (the ROC) on 13 November 2018, with revised draft financial reports
for the reporting unit for the financial years ended 30 June 2014, 30 June 2015, 30 June 2016 and
30 June 2017.

On 16 October 2018 the reporting unit also lodged with the ROC amended loans, grants and
donations statement for the financial years ended 30 June 2014, 30 June 2016 and 30 June 2017.
An amended loans, grants and donations statement for the financial year ended 30 June 2015 was
lodged with the ROC on 11 September 2018. These amended statements replaced the
documents previously lodged with the ROC.

| have examined the above mentioned documents and identified a number of matters, the details
of which are set out below (see Attachments A — D), that you are required to address. Once these
required amendments have been made, please arrange for each financial report to be:

e approved by the committee of management;
e audited,

e provided to members; and

¢ lodged with the ROC.

If you have any queries regarding this letter, please contact me on 03) 9603 0731 or by email at
joanne.fenwick@roc.gov.au.

Yours sincerely

\N//L L

Joanne Fenwick
Financial Reporting Specialist
Registered Organisations Commission

GPO Box 2983, Melbourne VIC 3001
Telephone: 1300 341 665 | Email: regorgs@roc.gov.au
Website: www.roc.gov.au
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Attachment A
FR2014/217 —financial report for the year ended 30 June 2014

Signing of reports

On 25 July 2018, the ROC received a notification of change from the Australian Workers’ Union
stating that on 20 July 2018 Mr Stephen Baker was appointed to the position of Branch Secretary
of the reporting unit.

Please ensure that the designated officer’s certificate, the operating report and the committee of
management statement are signed under your correct title.

Committee of management statement

Please amend the opening paragraph of the committee of management statement to include the
wording ‘Executive Committee’, i.e. “..., the Executive Committee of the Australian Workers’ Union,
Queensland Branch....

| also note that the numbering of item (e) in the committee of management statement is incorrect.
Please amend accordingly.

Auditor’s report — title of statements

As required under the Australian Auditing Standard ASA 700 Forming an Opinion and Reporting
on a Financial Report paragraph 24(c), the auditor’s statement lists the elements of the general
purpose financial report that were included in the audit scope. | note however, that the auditor’s
statement makes reference to the ‘statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income’
instead of the ‘statement of comprehensive income’.

Please have the auditor amend the auditor’s statement accordingly.

Note 2(e) and 3(a) — incorrect titles

Note 2(e) Contribution received and Note 3(a) Employee expenses are incorrectly labelled in the
‘total’ title i.e. Note 2(e) identifies the total as donations and grants instead of contribution received
and Note 3(a) identifies the total as capitation fees instead of employee expenses.

Please amend accordingly.
Disclosure of grants and donations

Note 3(f) discloses a donation to Free Viet Labour Federation for $1,795 and to the Cancer Council
Queensland for $1,000. These donations however are not listed in the loans, grants and donations
statement lodged with the ROC on 16 October 2018. It appears that these donations relate to
transactions that occurred within the financial year that ended 30 June 2016.

Please amend the Notes to the financial statements accordingly.

Activities under reporting guidelines not disclosed

Item 23 of the 4™ edition reporting guidelines for the purposes of section 253 states that if any of
the activities identified within items 23 of the reporting guidelines have not occurred in the reporting
period, a statement to this effect must be included either in the notes to the general purpose
financial report.

The general purpose financial report contained nil activity information for all prescribed reporting
guideline categories except the following:

e Item 23(a) — have a fund or account for compulsory levies or voluntary contributions;
e Item 23(b) — have moneys from a fund or account been invested in assets;

e Item 23(c) — have a fund or account that is required by the rules of the organisation or
branch; and

e Item 23(d) - transfer to or withdraw from a fund (other than the general fund), asset or
controlled entity.

Page 2 of 6



Attachment B

FR2015/343 —financial report for the year ended 30 June 2015
Signing of reports

On 25 July 2018, the ROC received a natification of change from the Australian Workers’ Union
stating that on 20 July 2018 Mr Stephen Baker was appointed to the position of Branch Secretary
of the reporting unit.

Please ensure that the designated officer’s certificate, the operating report and the committee of
management statement are signed under your correct title.

Committee of management statement

Please amend the opening paragraph of the committee of management statement to include the
wording ‘Executive Committee’, i.e. “..., the Executive Committee of the Australian Workers’ Union,
Queensland Branch....’

Prescribed information in Operating report

Regulation 159(c) requires an operating report to contain the name of each person who has been
a member of the committee of management of the reporting unit at any time during the reporting
period, and the period for which he or she held such a position. The ROC takes the words “at any
time” to mean that all persons, whether they held their position for the full year or for part of the
year, must be included.

I note that the names of Mr T Sullivan and Ms M Williams appeared in the previous year’s
operating report but did not appear in this year’s operating report. There was no indication that Mr
T Sullivan or Ms M Williams had resigned during, or at the end of, the previous year, and without
any such indication the question arises whether their names have been inadvertently omitted.

| also note that the names of Ms M Chambers and Mr D Liston appear in this year’s operating
report but did not appear in the previous year’s operating report. There is no indication of when Ms
M Chambers or Mr D Liston commenced as members of the Committee and whether they held
these positions for the entire or part of the reporting period.

Please amend the operating report to include the period for which the above mentioned committee
members held their position.

Appointment dates — superannuation fund trustee(s)

The reporting unit has provided information as required under section 254(2)(d) of the Fair Work
(Registered Organisations) Act 2009 in relation to officers and/or employees who are
superannuation fund trustee(s) or directors of a company that is a Superannuation fund trustee. |
note however that the appointment dates provided in this year’s operating report for Mr B Swan,
Ms C Mullen, Ms T Sharpe and Mr T Spence differ from the appointment date provided in the
previous year’s operating report.

Please amend accordingly.

Auditor’s report — title of statements

As required under the Australian Auditing Standard ASA 700 Forming an Opinion and Reporting
on a Financial Report paragraph 24(c), the auditor’s statement lists the elements of the general
purpose financial report that were included in the audit scope. | note however that the auditor’s
statement makes reference to the ‘statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income’
instead of the ‘statement of comprehensive income’.

Please have the auditor amend the auditor’s statement accordingly.

Note 2(e) and 3(a) — incorrect titles

Note 2(e) Contribution received and Note 3(a) Employee expenses are incorrectly labelled in the
‘total;’ title i.e. Note 2(e) identifies the total as donations and grants instead of contribution received
and Note 3(a) identifies the total as capitation fees instead of employee expenses.

Please amend accordingly.

Page 3 of 6



Disclosure of donation expenditure

Based on the loans, grants and donations statement that was lodged with the ROC on 11
September 2018, the disclosure of donations in Note 3(f) for the financial year ended 30 June 2015
should be as follows:

Total paid that were $1,000 or less $1,000
Total paid that exceeded $1,000 $2,500

Note 3(f) also discloses a donation to Free Viet Labour Federation for $1,795 and to the Cancer
Council Queensland for $1,000. These donations however are not listed in the loans, grants and
donations statement lodged with the ROC on 11 September 2018. It appears that these donations
relate to transactions that occurred within the financial year that ended 30 June 2016.

Please amend the Notes to the financial statements accordingly.

Activities under reporting guidelines not disclosed

Item 23 of the 4™ edition reporting guidelines for the purposes of section 253 states that if any of
the activities identified within items 23 of the reporting guidelines have not occurred in the reporting
period, a statement to this effect must be included either in the notes to the general purpose
financial report.

The general purpose financial report contained nil activity information for all prescribed reporting
guideline categories except the following:

e Item 23(a) — have a fund or account for compulsory levies or voluntary contributions;
e Item 23(b) — have moneys from a fund or account been invested in assets;

e Item 23(c) — have a fund or account that is required by the rules of the organisation or
branch; and

e Item 23(d) - transfer to or withdraw from a fund (other than the general fund), asset or
controlled entity.
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Attachment C
FR2016/261 —financial report for the year ended 30 June 2016

Signing of reports

On 25 July 2018, the ROC received a notification of change from the Australian Workers’ Union
stating that on 20 July 2018 Mr Stephen Baker was appointed to the position of Branch Secretary
of the reporting unit.

Please ensure that the designated officer’s certificate, the operating report and the committee of
management statement are signed under your correct title.

Committee of management statement

Please amend the opening paragraph of the committee of management statement to include the
wording ‘Executive Committee’, i.e. “..., the Executive Committee of the Australian Workers’ Union,
Queensland Branch....’

Auditor’s report — title of statements

As required under the Australian Auditing Standard ASA 700 Forming an Opinion and Reporting
on a Financial Report paragraph 24(c), the auditor’s statement lists the elements of the general
purpose financial report that were included in the audit scope. | note however, that the auditor’s
statement makes reference to the ‘statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income’
instead of the ‘statement of comprehensive income’.

Please have the auditor amend the auditor’s statement accordingly.

Note 2(e) and 3(a) — incorrect titles

Note 2(e) Contribution received and Note 3(a) Employee expenses are incorrectly labelled in the
‘total’ title i.e. Note 2(e) identifies the total as interest instead of contribution received and Note 3(a)
identifies the total as capitation fees instead of employee expenses.

Please amend accordingly.

Disclosure of contributions received

| note that Note 2(e) discloses the value of contributions received for the financial year ended 30
June 2015 as $225,000. This figure should be reported as $227,896.

Disclosure of donation expenditure

Based on the loans, grants and donations statement that was lodged with the ROC on 11
September 2018, the disclosure of donations in Note 3(f) for the financial year ended 30 June 2015
should be as follows:

Total paid that were $1,000 or less $1,000
Total paid that exceeded $1,000 $2,500
Please amend Note 3(f) accordingly.
Activities under reporting guidelines not disclosed

Item 23 of the 4™ edition reporting guidelines for the purposes of section 253 states that if any of
the activities identified within items 23 of the reporting guidelines have not occurred in the reporting
period, a statement to this effect must be included either in the notes to the general purpose
financial report.

The general purpose financial report contained nil activity information for all prescribed reporting
guideline categories except the following:

e Item 23(a) — have a fund or account for compulsory levies or voluntary contributions;
e Item 23(b) — have moneys from a fund or account been invested in assets;

e Item 23(c) — have a fund or account that is required by the rules of the organisation or
branch; and

e Item 23(d) - transfer to or withdraw from a fund (other than the general fund), asset or
controlled entity.
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Attachment D
FR2017/207 — financial report for the year ended 30 June 2017

Signing of reports

On 25 July 2018, the ROC received a notification of change from the Australian Workers’ Union
stating that on 20 July 2018 Mr Stephen Baker was appointed to the position of Branch Secretary
of the reporting unit.

Please ensure that the designated officer’s certificate, the operating report and the committee of
management statement are signed under your correct title.

Committee of management statement

Please amend the opening paragraph of the committee of management statement to include the
wording ‘Executive Committee’, i.e. “..., the Executive Committee of the Australian Workers’ Union,
Queensland Branch....’

Auditor’s report — title of statements

As required under the Australian Auditing Standard ASA 700 Forming an Opinion and Reporting
on a Financial Report paragraph 24(c), the auditor’s statement lists the elements of the general
purpose financial report that were included in the audit scope. | note however, that the auditor’s
statement makes reference to the ‘statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income’
instead of the ‘statement of comprehensive income’.

Please have the auditor amend the auditor’s statement accordingly.

Note 2(e) and 3(a) — incorrect titles

Note 2(e) Contribution received and Note 3(a) Employee expenses are incorrectly labelled in the
‘total’ title i.e. Note 2(e) identifies the total as interest instead of contribution received and Note 3(a)
identifies the total as capitation fees instead of employee expenses.

Please amend accordingly.
Activities under reporting guidelines not disclosed

Item 23 of the 4™ edition reporting guidelines for the purposes of section 253 states that if any of
the activities identified within items 23 of the reporting guidelines have not occurred in the reporting
period, a statement to this effect must be included either in the notes to the general purpose
financial report.

The general purpose financial report contained nil activity information for all prescribed reporting
guideline categories except the following:

e Item 23(a) — have a fund or account for compulsory levies or voluntary contributions;
e Item 23(b) — have moneys from a fund or account been invested in assets;

e Item 23(c) — have a fund or account that is required by the rules of the organisation or
branch; and

e Item 23(d) - transfer to or withdraw from a fund (other than the general fund), asset or
controlled entity.
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AWUEQ

QLD BRANGH OFFICE
Level 12, 333 Adelalde Street
BRISBANE, QLD 4000

GPO Box 88, BRISBANE, QLD, 4001
Members Hotline 1800 QLD AWU (753 298)
T: (07) 3221 8844 F; (07) 3221 8700
E: secretary@awu.org.au

8 November 2018

Mr Chris Enright

Executive Director

Registered Organisations Commission
GPO Box 2983

Melbourne VIC 3001

Dear Sir,

THE
AUSTRALIAN

WORKERS'
UNION

ABN 54942536069

Draft AWU QLD Branch -Financial reports (FR2014/217,FR2015/243, FR2016/261,FR2017/207)
and AWU OLD BRANCH Draft reports for the year ended 30" June 2018.

Further to Mr Enright’s letter of 18 July 2018, we enclose revised draft accounts for the above branch for
the years ended 30 June 2014, 30 June 2015, 30 June 2016, and 30 June 2017 reflecting the amendments

as requested in Appendix A.

After we have received your comments, we would envisage arranging for the accounts to be duly re-
authorised by the Committee of Management and the Branch Secretary. We also enclose a draft copy of

the 2018 accounts for the branch.
We look forward to hearing from you in due course.
Yours sincerely

Steve Baker
Secretary (Qld Branch)

Secretary: Steve Baker

The Australian Workers’ Union of Employees, Queensland.
The Australian Workers’ Union, Queensland Branch,

www.qld.awu.net.au












~ 9 Australian Government

““ Registered Organisations Commission

28 August 2018

Mr Steve Baker

Branch Secretary

The Australian Workers’ Union
Queensland Branch

333 Adelaide Street
BRISBANE QLD 4000

By email: steve.baker@awu.org.au
secretary@awu.org.au

Dear Mr Baker,

AWU QId Branch - Financial Reports (FR2014/217, FR2015/343, FR2016/261, FR2017/207)

| acknowledge receipt of your letter dated 15 August 2018. Thank you for responding to a
number of the issues that were raised in my correspondence of 18 July 2018. | note from your
letter, that the original registered auditor for the Queensland Branch of The Australian Worker’'s
Union (the Branch) is currently on leave and is expected back by the end of this month. It
would appear that this circumstance led to your advice that you proposed to respond to my
request at a later time than requested. We look forward to that response which may be sooner
than 28 September 2018.

| appreciate that in what you described as ‘the spirit of cooperation’ you were able to respond to
a number of points and that you would gladly forward other documents in the event an
appropriate address was provided. Those documents can be sent to the following physical
postal address:

Registered Organisations Commission
c/o Fair Work Ombudsman

Level 12, 414 La Trobe Street
Melbourne Victoria 3000

In the meantime, | have requested that staff of the Registered Organisations Commission
(ROC) review and consider the points you made, including those relating to the statement of
loans, grants and donations.

As a matter of general compliance with the Branch’'s obligations under the Fair Work
(Registered Organisations) Act 2009 (the RO Act), | advise that this statement, when lodged
with the ROC or its predecessor, should only identify the transactions relevant to the federal
Branch. When we have had the opportunity to properly consider your response, it is possible
that we will be advising that if previously lodged statements of loans, grants and donations
contain transactions which relate to the Branch’'s state association, regardless that the
statement may have been previously filed, the Branch lodge amended loans, grants and
donations statements reflecting only the transactions relevant to the Branch.

Telephone:1300 341 665

GPO Box 2983 Email : regorgs@roc.gov.au
Melbourne VIC 3001 Internet : www.roc.gov.au
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Should you have any questions regarding the above | can be contacted on (03) 9603 0711 or
via chris.enright@roc.gov.au.

Yours sincerely,

Chris Enright
Executive Director


mailto:chris.enright@roc.gov.au

15th August 2018

Registered Organisations Commission
GPO Box 2983
Melbourne VIC 3001

Email regorgs@roc.gov.au

Dear Mr Enright

RE: AWU OLD Branch (Financial reports 2014/217,FR2015/343,FR2016/261
FR2017/207)

Thank you for your letter of 2nd August 2018. The original registered auditor Mr A Fraser is
now a consultant with Hanrick Curran and is currently on holiday in the USA. Although we
have referred the letters to his fellow partners. Before we can give a definite answer to
Appendix A , it is professional protocol and courtesy to await on his comments as he was
directly involved in the issues raised in Appendix A. We understand that he will have
returned by the end of the month and we will reply to you on Appendix A as soon as he
returns.

However in the spirit of cooperation we will reply to your points in your July letter
contained in the heading Information by Wednesday 8t August 2018..

1) As mentioned earlier the matters in Appendix A will be clarified when the audit
partner returns from holiday.

2) The request for a new card was duly lodged with Commonwealth Bank on 30th
January 2014 and the MasterCard arrived on 10t February 2014. The authorisation to
cancel the card was made on 17t March 2017 and the statement of 30t March 2017
confirms its closure. We can confirm that the AWU Queensland Branch had no other
credit cards.

3) The CBA bank account in the name of AWU Queensland was opened on 26t July
2013. The branch account was closed on 4th December 2017 as indicated on the
statements. There have been no other bank accounts held by the Branch.

4) We will gladly forward the general ledger and bank and credit card statements to you.
However given the large number of boxes containing the records we need a true



delivery address rather than a Post Office Box as the records will need to be sent by
secure courier.

5) We note your request and will provide a complete answer once the auditor returns
from holiday.

Finally in connection with the points raised in your letter of 2nd August, we note the
contents and respective legislation references. However we are puzzled by your comments re
statement of loans and donation. We would draw your attention to the fact that the statement
was filed on 18t October 2014 . The return covered both entities as S269 applications
were in force (even though one of them was not a reporting unit). The $52500 donation
relates to the branch only, thus the two figures are never going to be directly
comparable.

We look forward to hearing from you promptly so we can duly deliver the accounting
records requested to a clear physical address.

Yours faithfully

Steve Baker
Secretary



Australian Government

Registered Organisations Commission

2 August 2018

Mr Steve Baker

Branch Secretary

The Australian Workers’ Union
Queensland Branch

333 Adelaide Street
BRISBANE QLD 4000

By email: steve.baker@awu.org.au

secretary@awu.org.au

Dear Mr Baker,

AWU QId Branch - Financial Reports (FR2014/217, FR2015/343, FR2016/261, FR2017/207)

| acknowledge receipt of your letter dated 30 July 2018 in response to requests for further
information contained in my correspondence of 18 July 2018. | note that while a response to the
financial and other issues in my letter was requested by Wednesday 8 August 2018, you advise
that instead you propose to provide a response approximately two (2) months after that date
and by 28 September 2018.

You have invited me not to hesitate with any follow up inquiries | might have and the purpose of
this letter is to take up that invitation to address a number of points regarding the Branch’s
financial reporting under the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009 (the RO Act).

One of the lenses through which the Registered Organisations Commission (ROC) views its
statutory role is through the eyes of members of registered organisations® and in that context, it
seems likely that members of the Queensland Branch (the Branch) of The Australian Workers’
Union (AWU) might benefit from at least some understanding of the reasons it will take at least
two further months to respond to the financial and other issues which have been raised.

Your letter simply indicates that you are seeking advice from your auditors. The circumstances
which require a further two months to respond are not readily apparent to the ROC given that
the Branch has all of the information and documents which have either been referred to or are
relevant to the issues raised.

For example, it does not appear to be a complex task for the Branch to examine and explain the
inconsistencies between:

o the Statement of Loans Grants and Donations lodged by the Branch for the year ended
30 June 2014 which contains a statement by the former Branch Secretary, Ben Swan,
that the Branch made donations of $176,500 in that year; and

1 Refer s5(3) of the RO Act which states that the standards in the RO Act seek to ‘encourage ... high
standards of accountability of organisations to their members’.
2 This total pertains to donations over $1,000 — refer s237 of the RO Act.
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o the Financial Report lodged by the Branch for the same year which states that the
Branch expended only $52,500 on ‘grants and donations’.

As | have previously indicated, the outcome of the ROC’s simple comparison is that there is a
discrepancy of $124,000 regarding donations reported in those documents for the same
reporting period. If the ROC’s assessment is correct, then at least one of the documents must
be inaccurate and there may be potential contraventions of one or more of the following:

e s237(1) which requires an organisation or branch to lodge a statement showing the
relevant particulars for each loan, grant or donation made over $1,000 at the end of each
financial year;

e s237(3) which provides that a statement lodged under s237(1) must not include a
statement that a person knows is (or is reckless as to whether it is) false or misleading;

e s253(2)(b)(ii) which requires, together with the Reporting Guidelines, the financial report
prepared by a reporting each year to state the total expended on donations over $1,000
and the total expended on donations that are less than $1,000;3

e s5253(3) which states that the information in the financial report ‘must give a true and fair
view of the financial position and performance of the reporting unit’ for the relevant year.

| note that each of the above provisions is a civil penalty provision that can lead to a maximum
penalty (for conduct that occurred in 2014) of $10,200 for an individual and $51,000 for an
organisation.* | further note that such penalties have now increased (for conduct that occurs
after 30 June 2017) to $21,000 for an individual and $105,000 for an organisation.®

An underlying issue to the above matters is that the Branch applied for and was granted
certificates under s269 for the financial years ended 30 June 2014 and 2015 on the grounds
that its financial affairs were ‘encompassed by’ the associated State body (The Australian
Workers’ Union of Employees, Queensland (AWEUQ)) and therefore the Branch would not be
expected to have had any financial affairs in those financial years. However, following
communications with the Fair Work Commission and the ROC regarding apparent financial
activity by the Queensland Branch of the federal AWU, the Branch prepared revised financial
reports for those years for the Queensland Branch of the federal AWU. My comments in this
letter and my letter of 18 July 2018 refer to those revised financial reports (and also financial
reports for the years ended 30 June 2016 and 2017).

Appointment to Secretary

| am aware that the previous Secretary, Mr Swan, has recently resigned and | congratulate you
on your appointment to the role of Branch Secretary. The ROC looks forward to working with
you and your leadership team as a reporting unit.

While you have recently been appointed to the Secretary role, | am advised that these matters
are not unfamiliar to you because the ROC corresponded with you regarding these matters
while you were the Acting Branch Secretary in 2017.

Request

In response to your invitation to make follow up inquiries, it would assist if you were able to
provide some understanding of the circumstances which require a further two months for the
Branch to respond to the issues raised in my correspondence of 18 July 2018.

3 Refer item 16(e) of the s253 Reporting Guidelines (Fourth edition) issued under s255 on 13 June 2014.
4 Based on the penalties being 60 penalty units for an individual and 300 penalty units for an organisation
and the Commonwealth penalty unit being $170 at that time (refer also former s306(1) of the RO Act).

5 Based on the penalties being 100 penalty units for an individual and 500 penalty units for an
organisation from 2 May 2017 and the Cth penalty unit being $210 from 1 July 2017 (refer also s306(1)).
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For example, you might consider whether it would be possible to respond to any or some of the
issues which have been raised prior to 28 September 2018. In any event, your advice would be
appreciated to assist in the ROC’s assessment of what, if any action, the ROC might consider

taking during the next two months.
Your further response is requested by COB Wednesday 15 August 2018.

Should you have any questions regarding the above | can be contacted on (03) 9603 0711 or
via chris.enright@roc.gov.au.

Yours sincerely,

Chris Enright
Executive Director


mailto:chris.enright@roc.gov.au

AWUEQ

QLD BRANCH OFFICE
Level 12, 333 Adelaide Street
BRISBANE, QLD 4000

GPO Box 88, BRISBANE, QLD, 4001
Members Hotline 1800 QLD AWU (753 298)
T: (07) 3221 8844 F: (07) 3221 8700
E: secretary@awu.org.au

30 July 2018

ABN 54942536069

Mr Chris Enright
Delegate of the Commissioner
Registered Organisations Commission

Sent via email: chris.enright@roc.gov.au

Cc. Ms Joanne Fenwick - joanne.fenwick@roc.gov.au
Mr Michael Georghiou, Hanrick Curran - Michael.Georghiou@hanrickcurran.com.au

Dear Mr Enright,
We refer to your letter dated 18 July 2018.

We are currently seeking advice from our auditors regarding a number of issues raised in your
correspondence.

We propose to provide you with a response by 28 September 2018.

In the interim, if you have any further queries relating to this matter please do not hesitate to contact
me on (07) 3221 8844.

Yours faithfully

Steve Baker
Branch Secretary

Secretary: Steve Baker

The Australian Workers’ Union of Employees, Queensland.
The Australian Workers’ Union, Queensland Branch. www.qld.awu.net.au



Australian Government

Registered Organisations Commission

18 July 2018

Mr Ben Swan

Branch Secretary

The Australian Workers’ Union
Queensland Branch

333 Adelaide Street
BRISBANE QLD 4000

By email: ben.swan@awu.org.au

Dear Mr Swan,

AWU QIld Branch - Financial Reports (FR2014/217, FR2015/343, FR2016/261, FR2017/207)
Purpose

| refer to previous correspondence dated 9 February 2018 from the Financial Reporting
Specialist of the Registered Organisations Commission (ROC) relating to financial reports of the
Queensland Branch (the Branch) of the Australian Workers’ Union (AWU) for the years ending
30 June 2014 to 2017 which were lodged with the ROC on 15 December 2017 under s 268 of
the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009 (RO Act).

| also refer to related applications for s 269 certificates under the RO Act regarding the financial
affairs of the branch for a number of years up to 2016.

The ROC'’s correspondence of 9 February 2018 acknowledged, among other things, receipt of a
range of financial reports, advised that a range of relevant matters were the subject of review
and indicated that further clarification would be sought about a number of issues of concern.
The purpose of this correspondence is to set out the issues of concern and request additional
information which might clarify those concerns.

As you will be aware, the ROC has a total of seventeen (17) staff to perform a broad and
extensive range of functions relating to approximately four hundred (400) reporting units. With
only two financial reporting specialists responsible for the 400 reporting units, undertaking this
type of complex analysis for one reporting unit has been challenging.

Regardless of the challenges, | take the opportunity to apologise for not providing this
correspondence closer in proximity to the ROC'’s earlier letter dated 9 February 2018.

Overview of financial reporting - AWU QId Branch

In accordance with s 242 of the RO Act, the Queensland Branch is a reporting unit of the
federally registered AWU. In its capacity as a reporting unit, the Branch applied for s 269
certificates for the years ended 30 June 2004 to 2016 on the grounds that the financial affairs of
the reporting unit were ‘encompassed by’ the financial affairs of an associated State body (The
Australian Workers' Union of Employees, Queensland (AWUEQ)). The applications included in
each year:

Telephone:1300 341 665

GPO Box 2983 Email : regorgs@roc.gov.au
Melbourne VIC 3001 Internet : www.roc.gov.au
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o the AWUEQ’s financial report prepared under the Industrial Relations Act 1999 (QId);

o Operating Reports specifically for the reporting unit prepared under s 269(2)(e) and s
254 of the RO Act (original Operating Reports).

In response to applications made by the Branch, certificates were issued under s 269 for years
ended 30 June 2004 to 2015. However a certificate was not issued for 2016 (or thereafter)
when it became apparent that the reporting unit may have had its own credit card, bank account
and expenditure since at least the year ended 30 June 2014 — because this raised concerns as
to whether the financial affairs of the reporting unit were in fact encompassed by the financial
affairs of the AWUEQ under s 269.

To address these concerns, the reporting unit agreed to prepare, audit, provide to members and
lodge with the ROC its own financial reports under the RO Act for years ended 30 June 2014 to
2017 (new Financial Reports). The new Financial Reports for 2014 to 2016 include new
Operating Reports (new Operating Reports) under s 254 which appear to replace those
previously lodged with the s 269 applications for the years 2014 to 2016.

On 20 September 2017 | requested copies of the documents ‘considered by the auditor for the
purposes of the 2016 report’. The reporting unit then provided:

e acopy of the reporting unit’'s general ledger for the year ended 30 June 2016;

e a ‘Transaction History’ report from the Commonwealth Bank of Australia (CBA) for a
bank account in the name of ‘AWU QLD Branch’ for the year ended 30 June 2016;

e monthly credit card statements for a CBA corporate charge card (credit card) for the
‘AWU QLD BRANCH’ with the cardholder name of ‘Ben Swan’ covering the period from
30 June 2015 to 28 June 2016;

e receipts and invoices for the monthly credit card statements from June 2015 to June
2016 (with the exception of the period 30 October to 27 November 2015 which have not
yet been provided and which are requested further below).!

Issues that arise
Having regard to the circumstances | have described above, a number of issues arise.
In relation to the years ended 30 June 2014 and 2015:

o whether the s 269 applications were accurate and sufficiently disclosed all relevant
information regarding the financial affairs of the reporting unit;

¢ whether the new Financial Reports for 2014 and 2015 should be filed by the ROC (once
a number of issues have been addressed as set out further below) and if so, whether the
s 269 certificates for those years should be revoked;

e whether the reporting unit or any of its officers may have breached any of the civil
penalty provisions of the RO Act regarding financial reporting in relation to these years;

o whether the ROC should commence an inquiry or investigation under ss 330 or 331
regarding any of the above matters.

1|t is also noted that alterations to the AWU Rules were certified on 3 June 2016 to confirm that the AWEUQ may
receive membership fees for the AWU in Queensland and pay capitation fees to the National Office of the federal
AWU (AWU Rules 8(12), 54(3), 55(4), 56(3) - refer R2016/93.
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In relation to the years ended 30 June 2004 to 2013:

e whether the s 269 applications were accurate and sufficiently disclosed all relevant
information - or whether similar issues may arise as to those in the 2014 and 2015
financial years set out above.

In relation to the years ended 30 June 2016 and 2017:

e whether the new Financial Reports for 2016 and 2017 should be filed by the ROC (once
a number of issues have been addressed as set out below).

Inconsistencies in new Financial Reports

The ROC’s Financial Reporting Specialist, Ms Joanne Fenwick, has assessed the new Financial
Reports and a number of matters have been identified, as set out in Annexure A, that are
required to be addressed.

A number of these matters are significant - for example:

e adiscrepancy of $124,000 between the donations disclosed in a statement under s 237
for year ended 30 June 2014 ($176,500) and the donations disclosed in the new
Financial Report for that year ($52,500);

e a discrepancy of $227,896 between the financial result in the new Operating Report for
year ended 30 June 2015 ($237,844 loss) and the new Financial Report ($9,948 loss);

¢ the new Financial Reports for 2014 to 2017 that were lodged were signed and dated but
the comparable documents on the reporting unit's website (https://gld.awu.net.au/) are
unsigned and mostly undated - hence the provision of those incomplete documents on
the website would not constitute provision of the documents to members under s 265.

These issues require clarification to ensure that accurate information has been provided to
members and lodged with the ROC.

| also note that a number of the inconsistencies pertain to statutory provisions (such as ss 237,
254 and 265) which attract civil penalties. For example:

e s 237(1) provides that a reporting unit must lodge each year a statement providing
relevant particulars regarding each loan, grant or donation over $1,000 - a contravention
of this provision by an organisation may attract a penalty of up to 500 penalty units;?

e s 237(3) provides that a statement that is lodged under s237(1) must not be false or
misleading (or reckless as to whether it is false or misleading) - a contravention of this
provision by an organisation may attract a penalty of up to 500 penalty units.®

At this point a written response regarding the above issues is required. Once this has been
received we will further advise what other documents or action may be required.

Credit card expenditure - duration

In a telephone discussion with Ms Fenwick, on 3 January 2017 (and in subsequent discussions
with the ROC) you have indicated that:

e the reporting unit's expenditure from year ended 30 June 2014 onwards pertained to a
credit card of the reporting unit and a related bank account; and

e the credit card, bank account and expenditure were funded by the AWUEQ .

2 The maximum penalty that can be imposed on an organisation is five times higher than that which may be imposed
on an individual (refer s306(1)).
3 lbid.



This may suggest that the financial affairs disclosed in the reporting unit's new Financial
Reports for years ended 30 June 2014 to 2017 pertain to that credit card and bank account.

However at this point it remains unclear:

¢ when the credit card and bank account commenced;
¢ whether there were any other credit cards or bank accounts;

e whether all credit card(s) and bank account(s) have been closed (although the
cancellation of a credit card is discussed further below); and thus

e in which years the financial affairs of the reporting unit were encompassed by the
AWUEQ and in which years they were not.

Credit card expenditure - purpose

It is also unclear whether the expenditure on the credit card pertained to the reporting unit.

For example, the credit card documents that have been provided for year ended 30 June 2016
suggest that:

e some expenditure pertains to the activities of the reporting unit (such as interstate flights
for officers to attend meetings of the National Executive of the federal AWU); however

e some expenditure may pertain to the AWUEQ - for example:

o monthly invoices addressed to the ‘Australian Workers Union of Employees
Queensland’ from AST (Applied Satellite Technology Australia Pty Ltd) of about
$64.00 (incl GST) each month;

o an Australia Post invoice for a post office box renewal for ‘THE AUST WORKERS
UNION OF EMPLOYEES QLD [located at] PO Box 1430 INGHAM QLD 4850’ for
$186.00 and related receipt information for $211.00.

Credit card - cancellation

In the telephone discussion with Ms Fenwick on 3 January 2017 you indicated that the credit
card had been cancelled due to unauthorised expenditure - but a new credit card had
subsequently been obtained although not yet activated.

In subsequent correspondence of 20 October 2017 you provided further information regarding
the unauthorised expenditure as follows:

...The two relevant unauthorised transactions were recorded in the December 2016 credit card
statement. In December 2016, the Branch reported the unauthorised transactions to the
Commonwealth Bank. In February 2017, the Commonwealth Bank re-credited the Branch
account the funds previously debited from the unauthorised transactions. ... It was apparent that
the two unauthorised transactions [had been] debited by a dental business in Spain...

You also advised that:

In March 2017, the credit card was cancelled and no replacement card was sought by the Branch
or issued by the Bank.

Further information requested by Wednesday 8 August 2018
Please respond to the following points:
1. Please clarify each of the inconsistencies in Annexure A.

2. Please:



a. advise when the reporting unit first obtained the abovementioned CBA corporate
charge card (credit card) in the name of ‘AWU QLD BRANCH’,

b. provide confirmation from the CBA that the corporate charge card has been
cancelled and the date that occurred;

c. advise whether the reporting unit has (or previously had) any other credit cards in
the name of the reporting unit (or any of its officers) and if so please provide:

i. details of the relevant card(s);
ii. the date(s) when the card(s) were obtained;
ii. the date(s) when any such cards were cancelled.
3. Please advise:

a. when the reporting unit first opened the abovementioned CBA bank account in
the name of ‘AWU QLD Branch’;

b. whether the bank account has been closed and, if so, confirmation from the CBA
of this and the date when it occurred;

c. whether the reporting unit has (or previously had) any other bank accounts in the
name of the reporting unit (or any of its officers) and if so please provide:

i. details of the bank account(s);
ii. the date(s) when the bank accounts were opened;
iii. the date(s) when any such accounts were closed.

4. Please provide a copy of the general ledger, bank statements, credit card statements
(and related invoices and receipts) for:

a. year ended 30 June 2017,
b. year ended 30 June 2015;
c. year ended 30 June 2014;

d. any earlier years in which the reporting unit had such accounts or credit cards (in
relation to the period 1 July 2003 to 30 June 2013).

5. Regarding the credit card expenditure for year ended 30 June 2016 please:

a. address whether all the expenditure in that year pertained to the reporting unit
having regard to a number of expenditure items that appear to pertain to the
AWUEQ as set out further above;

b. provide the receipts and invoices for the credit card statement for 30 October to
27 November 2015.4

4 The reporting unit appears to have inadvertently forwarded the financial documents for September 2015
twice and has not yet provided the financial documents for November 2015.
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Your responses to these matters is requested by COB Wednesday 8 August 2018.

Should you have any questions regarding the above | can be contacted on (03) 9603 0711 or
via chris.enright@roc.gov.au.

Yours sincerely,

Chris Enright
Executive Director


mailto:chris.enright@roc.gov.au

Annexure A - Inconsistencies in new Financial Reports for 2014 to 2017

Year ended | Issue Inconsistent information
30 June . Result for the year | The new Financial Report The new Operating Report states there
2014 (85253, 254). states there was a profit of was a loss of $105,562.

$10,764.

. Grants and

donations (ss253,
237 & Reporting
Guidelines).

The new Financial Report
states that expenditure on
grants and donations was
$52,500.

The Statement of Loans, Grants and
Donations lodged under s237 listed
$176,500 of donations.

. Donation to Free

Viet[nam] Labour
Federation (ss253,

Note 3(f) of the new
Financial Report refers to a
donation of $1,795 to the

The Statement of Loans, Grants and
Donations lodged under s237 does not
refer to this donation (however the s237

Council Qld
(55253, 237 &
Reporting
Guidelines).

Financial Report refers to a
donation of $1,000 to the
Cancer Council Queensland.

237 & Reporting Free Viet[nam] Labour Statement for another year (2016) does
Guidelines). Federation). refer to such a donation).
. Donation to Cancer | Note 3(f) of the new The Statement of Loans, Grants and

Donations lodged under s237 does not

refer to this donation (however the s237
Statement for another year (2016) does
refer to such a donation).

. Disclosure of

employee
expenses to office
holders and other
employees (ss253
& Reporting
Guidelines)

Note 3(a) of the new
Financial Report refers to
Employee expenses of
$7,800.

Items 16(g) and 16(f) of the 4™ edition
Reporting Guidelines requires employee
expenses to be distinguished between
office holders and other employees. It also
requires the separate disclosure of
employee expenses by wages and
salaries, superannuation, leave and other
entitlements, separation and redundancies
and other employee expenses. This is a
mandatory disclosure as per item 17 of the
4 edition Reporting Guidelines.

. Disclosure of audit

fees (55253 &
AASB 1054)

Note 9 of the new Financial
Report discloses a figure for
audit services under the
2013 financial year.

Note 9 of the new Financial
Report refers to audit
services of $5,000 for the
2014 financial year.

Note 1(a) states that ‘the activities only
commenced in the financial year ended 30
June 2014. As a result, there are no
comparatives’.

Note 3(h) discloses sundry expenses
(including audit fees) of $1,531 for the
2014 financial year.

. New and Future

Australian
Accounting
Standards (ss253 &

AASB 108 Accounting
Policies, Changes in
Accounting estimates and
Errors paragraphs 28 and 30

This information has not been provided in
the new Financial Report.

7




Year ended

Issue

Inconsistent information

AASB 108)

require that entities disclose
Australian Accounting
Standards adopted during
the period and Australian
Accounting Standards
issued by not yet effective
with an assessment of the
future impact of the standard
on the entity.

8. Review of principal
activities (s254).

Subsection 254(2)(a) of the
RO Act requires an
operating report to contain a
review of the principal
activities of the reporting
unit, the results of those
activities and any significant
changes in the nature of
those activities.

The new Operating Report provides a
review of the principal activities but does
not explain the results of these activities.

9. Change in financial
affairs (s254).

Sections s254(2)(b) of the
RO Act state that the
Operating Report must give
details of any significant
changes in the financial
affairs of the reporting unit.

The reporting unit did not lodge its own
financial report under s253 from 2004 to
2013. It then started doing so from the year
ended 30 June 2014. This suggests there
was a significant change in the financial
affairs in that year that should be disclosed
under s254(2)(b).

10. Trustee of

Subsection 254(2)(d) of the

In the new Operating Report, information is

superannuation RO Act requires details of provided on an individual who ceased their

entity (s254) any officer or member of the | appointment as Director of Aust (Q) Super
reporting unit who is a in June 2013. As they did not hold the
trustee, or a director of a position of Director Aust (Q) Super during
company that is a trustee, of | the reporting period ended 30 June 2014,
a superannuation entity or they are not required to be included in the
an exempt public sector operating report.
superannuation scheme.

11. Period of Regulation 159(c) of the Fair | The new Operating Report states ‘the
Membership of Work (Registered following were members of the Committee
Committee of Organisations) Regulations | as at 30 June 2014'. To satisfy the
Management 2009 (RO Regs) requires regulation the reporting unit should
(s.254 & Regulation | the operating report to disclose the dates of membership during
159(c)). disclose the period each the reporting period for each member or

listed officer serviced on the
committee of management
during the reporting period.

state ‘that members of the committee of
management held positions for the entire
reporting period unless indicated
otherwise’.

12. Unclear whether
signed and dated

The lodged financial
documents are signed and

The financial documents posted on the
AWU Qld website are unsigned and mostly
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Year ended | Issue Inconsistent information
documents dated. The Designated undated. Accordingly those document as
provided to Officers Certificate also posted on the AWU QId website do not

members (5265).

states they have been
provided to members.

constitute provision of the financial
documents to members under s265.

13. Designated
Officer's Certificate
(s268)

Section 268(c) requires the
reporting unit to lodge with
the ROC a certificate by a
prescribed designated officer
that states that the
documents lodged are
copies of the documents
provided to members and
presented to a general
meeting, or presented to a
meeting of the committee of
management, as the case
requires, in accordance with
section 266.

Two (2) designated officer’s certificates
were included with the new Financial
Report lodged on 15 December 2017 with
the ROC. The first certificate indicates that
the Branch report was present to a meeting
of the committee of management on 23
November 2017 in accordance with section
266 of the RO Act however, the second
certificate indicates that this meeting
occurred on 15 December 2017.

14. Content of the
second designated
officer’s certificate
(s268)

The second designated
officer’s certificate appears
to cover the new Financial
Reports lodged for the year
ended 30 June 2014, 30
June 2015, 30 June 2016
and 30 June 2017. |t states
that ‘the documents lodged
herewith are copies of the
full report for The Australian
Workers’ Union, Queensland
Branch for the periods
ending 30 June 2014-2017
and the full combined report
for The Australian Workers’
Union, Queensland Branch
and The Australian Workers’
Union of Employees,
Queensland referred to in
s.268 of the Fair Work
(Registered Organisations)
Act 2009.

A “full combined report’ for the reporting
unit and the AWUEQ was not included with
the lodged documents. The financial
reporting obligations under Part 3 of
Chapter 8 of the RO Act only relate to the
federally registered entity and a full
combined report’ of the reporting unit and
the AWUEQ is not required and would not
satisfy the requirements under the RO Act.

30 June
2015

15. Result for the year
(55253, 254).

The new Financial Report
states the result for the 2015
year was a loss of $9,948
and for the 2014 year, a loss
of $10,764.

The new Operating Report states the result
for the 2015 year was a loss of $237,844.

The new Financial Report should state a
result for the 2014 year as a profit of
$10,764.

16. Donation to Free
Viet[nam] Labour

Note 3(f) of the new
Financial Report refers to a

The Statement of Loans, Grants and
Donations lodged under s237 does not
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Year ended | Issue Inconsistent information
Federation (ss253, | donation of $1,795 to the refer to this donation (however the s237
237 & Reporting Free Viet[nam] Labour Statement for another year (2016) does
Guidelines). Federation). refer to such a donation).

17.New and Future
Australian
Accounting
Standards (ss253 &
AASB 108)

AASB 108 Accounting
Policies, Changes in
Accounting estimates and
Errors paragraphs 28 and 30
require that entities disclose
Australian Accounting
Standards adopted during
the period and Australian
Accounting Standards
issued by not yet effective
with an assessment of the
future impact of the standard
on the entity.

This information has not been provided in
the new Financial Report.

18. Cash Flow
Statement (ss253)

The new Financial Report
states that the net cash used
by operating activities for the
2015 year is ($6,792).

The figure reported as the
net cash used by operating
activities for the 2014 year is
($6,792).

When calculating the figures provided in
the Cash flow statement, the net cash used
by operating activities for the 2015 year is
($5,026).

The figure for the 2014 financial year
should be reported as the net cash from
operating activities i.e. $6,792.

19. Review of principal

Subsection 254(2)(a) of the

The new Operating Report provides a

activities (s254). RO Act requires an review of the principal activities but does
operating report to contain a | not explain the results of these activities.
review of the principal
activities of the reporting
unit, the results of those
activities and any significant
changes in the nature of
those activities.

20. Period of Regulation 159(c) of the RO | The new Operating Report states ‘the
Membership of Regs requires the operating | following were members of the Committee
Committee of report to disclose the period | as at 30 June 2015, To satisfy the
Management each listed officer serviced regulation the reporting unit should
(s.254 & Regulation | on the committee of disclose the dates of membership during
159(c)). management during the the reporting period for each member or

reporting period.

state ‘that members of the committee of
management held positions for the entire
reporting period unless indicated
otherwise’.

21. Unclear whether
signed and dated

The lodged financial
documents are signed and

The financial documents posted on the
AWU Qld website are unsigned and mostly
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Year ended | Issue Inconsistent information
documents dated. The Designated undated. Accordingly those document as
provided to Officers Certificate also posted on the AWU QId website do not

members (5265).

states that the documents
have been provided to
members.

constitute provision of the financial
documents to members under s265.

22.Designated
Officer’s Certificate
(s268)

Section 268(c) requires the
reporting unit to lodge with
the ROC a certificate by a
prescribed designated officer
that states that the
documents lodged are
copies of the documents
provided to members and
presented to a general
meeting, or presented to a
meeting of the committee of
management, as the case
requires, in accordance with
section 266.

Two (2) designated officer’s certificates
were included with the new Financial
Report lodged on 15 December 2017 with
the ROC. The first certificate indicates that
the Branch report was present to a meeting
of the committee of management on 23
November 2017 in accordance with section
266 of the RO Act however, the second
certificate indicates that this meeting
occurred on 15 December 2017.

23. Content of the
second designated
officer’s certificate
(s268)

The second designated
officer’s certificate appears
to cover the new Financial
Reports lodged for the year
ended 30 June 2014, 30
June 2015, 30 June 2016
and 30 June 2017. |t states
that ‘the documents lodged
herewith are copies of the
full report for The Australian
Workers’ Union, Queensland
Branch for the periods
ending 30 June 2014-2017
and the full combined report
for The Australian Workers’
Union, Queensland Branch
and The Australian Workers’
Union of Employees,
Queensland referred to in
s.268 of the Fair Work
(Registered Organisations)
Act 2009.

A ‘full combined report’ for the reporting
unit and the AWUEQ was not included with
the lodged documents. The financial
reporting obligations under Part 3 of
Chapter 8 of the RO Act only relate to the
federally registered entity and a ‘full
combined report’ of the reporting unit and
the AWUEQ is not required and would not
satisfy the requirements under the RO Act.

30 June
2016

24. Cash Flow
Statement (ss253)

The new Financial Report
states that the net cash used
by operating activities for the
2015 year is ($6,792).

When calculating the figures provided in
the Cash flow statement, the net cash used
by operating activities for the 2015 year is
($5,026).
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Year ended

Issue

Inconsistent information

25. Disclosure of cash
flow information
(s5253)

Note 12 Cash Flow
Information for the 2016 year
reports a loss of ($22,762)
and the cash flow from
operations as a loss of
($17,049).

Note 12 Cash Flow
Information for the 2015 year
reports a loss of ($237,844)
and the cash flow from
operations as a loss of
($234,688).

The Statement of Comprehensive Income
reports a profit for the year of $22,762
therefore the cash flow from operations
should be a profit of $17,049.

The Statement of Comprehensive Income
reports a loss for the year of ($9,948)
therefore the cash flow from operations
should be a loss of ($6,792).

26. Review of principal
activities (s254).

Subsection 254(2)(a) of the
RO Act requires an
operating report to contain a
review of the principal
activities of the reporting
unit, the results of those
activities and any significant
changes in the nature of
those activities.

The new Operating Report provides a
review of the principal activities but does
not explain the results of these activities.

27.Unclear whether
signed and dated
documents
provided to
members (5265).

The lodged financial
documents are signed and
dated. The Designated
Officers Certificate also
states that the documents
have been provided to
members.

The financial documents posted on the
AWU Qld website are unsigned and mostly
undated. Accordingly those document as
posted on the AWU QId website do not
constitute  provision of the financial
documents to members under s265.

Also, the Committee of Management
Statement on the website is in the name of
Ben Swan (and is unsigned) however the
Statement that was lodged was in the
name of Stephen Baker and is signed.

28. Designated
Officer’s Certificate
(s268)

Section 268(c) requires the
reporting unit to lodge with
the ROC a certificate by a
prescribed designated officer
that states that the
documents lodged are
copies of the documents
provided to members and
presented to a general
meeting, or presented to a
meeting of the committee of
management, as the case
requires, in accordance with
section 266.

Two (2) designated officer's certificates
were included with the new Financial
Report lodged on 15 December 2017 with
the ROC. The first certificate indicates that
the Branch report was present to a meeting
of the committee of management on 23
November 2017 in accordance with section
266 of the RO Act however, the second
certificate indicates that this meeting
occurred on 15 December 2017.
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Year ended

Issue

Inconsistent information

29. Content of the
second designated
officer’s certificate
(s268)

The second designated
officer’s certificate appears
to cover the new Financial
Reports lodged for the year
ended 30 June 2014, 30
June 2015, 30 June 2016
and 30 June 2017. It states
that ‘the documents lodged
herewith are copies of the
full report for The Australian
Workers’ Union, Queensland
Branch for the periods
ending 30 June 2014-2017
and the full combined report
for The Australian Workers’
Union, Queensland Branch
and The Australian Workers’
Union of Employees,
Queensland referred to in
5.268 of the Fair Work
(Registered Organisations)
Act 2009.

A ‘full combined report’ for the reporting
unit and the AWUEQ was not included with
the lodged documents. The financial
reporting obligations under Part 3 of
Chapter 8 of the RO Act only relate to the
federally registered entity and a ‘full
combined report’ of the reporting unit and
the AWUEQ is not required and would not
satisfy the requirements under the RO Act.

30 June
2017

30. Grants and
donations (ss253,
237 & Reporting
Guidelines).

The new Financial Report
states that expenditure on
grants and donations was
zero.

The Statement of Loans, Grants and
Donations lodged under s237 listed
$30,000 of donations.

31. Donation to Free
Viet[nam] Labour

Note 3(f) of the new
Financial Report refers to a

The Statement of Loans, Grants and
Donations lodged under s237 does not

Federation (ss253, | donation of $1,795 to the refer to this donation (however the s237
237 & Reporting Free Viet[nam] Labour Statement for a different year (2016) does
Guidelines). Federation). refer to it).

32. Donation to Cancer | Note 3(f) of the new The Statement of Loans, Grants and

Council QId
(85253, 237 &
Reporting
Guidelines).

Financial Report refers to a
donation of $1,000 to the
Cancer Council Queensland.

Donations lodged under s237 does not
refer to this donation (however the s237
Statement for another year (2016) does
refer to such a donation).

33. Future Australian
Accounting
Standards (ss253 &
AASB 108)

AASB 108 Accounting
Policies, Changes in
Accounting estimates and
Errors paragraphs 30
requires that entities disclose
Australian Accounting
Standards adopted during
the period and Australian
Accounting Standards
issued by not yet effective
with an assessment of the

Not all the relevant information relating to
this requirement has been provided in the
new Financial Report.
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Year ended

Issue

Inconsistent information

future impact of the standard
on the entity.

34. Review of principal
activities (s254).

Subsection 254(2)(a) of the
RO Act requires an
operating report to contain a
review of the principal
activities of the reporting
unit, the results of those
activities and any significant
changes in the nature of
those activities.

The new Operating Report provides a
review of the principal activities but does
not explain the results of these activities.

35. Trustee of

Subsection 254(2)(d) of the

In the new Operating Report, information is

superannuation RO Act requires details of provided on an individual who ceased their
entity (s254) any officer or member of the | appointment as Director of AustSafe Pty
reporting unit who is a Ltd in December 2015. As they did not
trustee, or a director of a hold the position of Director AustSafe Pty
company that is a trustee, of | Ltd during the reporting period ended 30
a superannuation entity or June 2017, they are not required to be
an exempt public sector included in the operating report.
superannuation scheme.

36. Period of Regulation 159(c) of the RO | The new Operating Report states ‘the
Membership of Regs requires the operating | following were members of the Committee
Committee of report to disclose the period | as at 30 June 2017. To satisfy the
Management each listed officer serviced regulation the reporting unit should
(s.254 & Regulation | on the committee of disclose the dates of membership during
159(c)). management during the the reporting period for each member or

reporting period.

state ‘that members of the committee of
management held positions for the entire
reporting period unless indicated
otherwise’.

The new Operating Report also lists
information on members who ceased to be
on the Committee and who were appointed
to the Committee however it relates to
events that happened in the previous
reporting period.

37.Unclear whether
signed and dated
documents
provided to
members (5265).

The lodged financial
documents are signed and
dated. The Designated
Officers Certificate also
states that the documents
have been provided to
members.

The financial documents posted on the
AWU QId website are unsigned and mostly
undated. Accordingly those document as
posted on the AWU QId website do not
constitute provision of the financial
documents to members under s265.

38. Designated
Officer’s Certificate

Section 268(c) requires the
reporting unit to lodge with

Two (2) designated officer’s certificates
were included with the new Financial
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Year ended | Issue Inconsistent information
(s268) the ROC a certificate by a Report lodged on 15 December 2017 with
prescribed designated officer | the ROC. The first certificate indicates that
that states that the the Branch report was present to a meeting

documents lodged are
copies of the documents
provided to members and
presented to a general
meeting, or presented to a
meeting of the committee of
management, as the case
requires, in accordance with
section 266.

of the committee of management on 23
November 2017 in accordance with section
266 of the RO Act however, the second
certificate indicates that this meeting
occurred on 15 December 2017.

39. Content of the
second designated
officer’s certificate
(s268)

The second designated
officer’s certificate appears
to cover the new Financial
Reports lodged for the year
ended 30 June 2014, 30
June 2015, 30 June 2016
and 30 June 2017. It states
that ‘the documents lodged
herewith are copies of the
full report for The Australian
Workers’ Union, Queensland
Branch for the periods
ending 30 June 2014-2017
and the full combined report
for The Australian Workers’
Union, Queensland Branch
and The Australian Workers’
Union of Employees,
Queensland referred to in
s.268 of the Fair Work
(Registered Organisations)
Act 2009.

A “full combined report’ for the reporting
unit and the AWUEQ was not included with
the lodged documents. The financial
reporting obligations under Part 3 of
Chapter 8 of the RO Act only relate to the
federally registered entity and a ‘full
combined report’ of the reporting unit and
the AWUEQ is not required and would not
satisfy the requirements under the RO Act.
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Australian Government

Registered Organisations Commission

9 February 2018

Mr Ben Swan

Branch Secretary

The Australian Workers’ Union, Queensland Branch
333 Adelaide Street

BRISBANE QLD 4000

By email: ben.swan@awu.org.au

daniel.walton@nat.awu.net.au

Dear Mr Swan

The Australian Workers’ Union Queensland Branch Financial Reports for the years ended
30 June 2014, 30 June 2015, 30 June 2016 and 30 June 2017 — [FR2014/217, FR2015/343,
FR2016/261, FR2017/207]

| acknowledge receipt of the financial reports of the Queensland Branch of the Australian
Workers’ Union (the Branch) for the years ended 30 June 2014 to 2017. These documents
were lodged with the Registered Organisations Commission on 15 December 2017 under s 268
of the Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009.

| also refer to related applications for s 269 certificates regarding the financial affairs of the
Branch for a range of years and in particular between 2004 to 2016.

The purpose of this correspondence is to update you that these matters are currently the
subject of review and that in the coming weeks further clarification will be sought about a
number of issues of concern.

If you have any queries regarding this letter, please contact on (03) 9603 0731 or via email at
joanne.fenwick@roc.gov.au.

Yours sincerely

Joanne Fenwick
Financial Reporting Specialist
Registered Organisations Commission

GPO Box 2983, Melbourne VIC 3001
Telephone: 1300 341 665 | Email: regorgs@roc.gov.au

Website: www.roc.gov.au


http://www.roc.gov.au/
mailto:ben.swan@awu.org.au
mailto:daniel.walton@nat.awu.net.au
mailto:joanne.fenwick@roc.gov.au
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FairWork

14 November 2014 Commission

Mr Ben Swan

Secretary, Queensland Branch
The Australian Workers’ Union
GPO Box 88

BRISBANE QLD 4001

Dear Mr Swan

Section 269 application for certificate stating financial affairs of reporting unit are
encompassed by financial affairs of associated State body for year ended 30 June 2014
(FR2014/217)

| refer to the application lodged pursuant to section 269 of the Fair Work (Registered
Organisations) Act 2009 in respect of the The Australian Workers’ Union, Queensland Branch
for the financial year ended 30 June 2014. The application was lodged with the Fair Work
Commission on 11 November 2014.

| have granted the application. The certificate is attached.

If you wish to discuss this matter, please contact Stephen Kellett on (02) 6723 7237 or by
email at stephen.kellett@fwc.gov.au.

Yours sincerely

Chris Enright
Delegate of the General Manager


mailto:stephen.kellett@fwc.gov.au
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FairWork
Commission

CERTIFICATE

Fair Work (Registered Organisations) Act 2009
5.269(2)(a)—Reporting unit's financial affairs encompassed by associated State body

The Australian Workers’ Union, Queensland Branch
(FR2014/217)

MR ENRIGHT MELBOURNE, 14 NOVEMBER 2014

Reporting unit's financial affairs encompassed by associated State body

[1] On 11 November 2014 an application was made under s.269(2)(a) of the Fair Work
(Registered Organisations) Act 2009 (the Act) by The Australian Workers’ Union, Queensland
Branch (the reporting unit) for a certificate stating that the financial affairs of the reporting unit
are encompassed by the financial affairs of The Australian Workers’ Union of Employees,
Queensland (the Association), an associated State body, in respect of the financial year ending
30 June 2014.

[2] On 11 November 2014, the reporting unit lodged a copy of the audited accounts of the
Association with the Fair Work Commission.

[3] | am satisfied that the Association:
e isregistered under the Industrial Relations Act 1999 a prescribed State Act; and
e s, or purports to be, composed of substantially the same members as the reporting
unit; and
e has, or purports to have, officers who are substantially the same as designated
officers in relation to the reporting unit; and
e isanassociated State body.

[4] I am further satisfied that:

e the Association has in accordance with prescribed State legislation, prepared
accounts, had those accounts audited, provided a copy of the audited accounts to
its members and lodged the accounts with the relevant State authority;

e the reporting unit has lodged a copy of the audited accounts with the Fair Work
Commission;

e any members of the reporting unit who are not also members of the Association
have been provided with copies of the accounts at substantially the same time as the
members of the reporting unit who are members of the Association; and

e areport under s.254 of the Act has been prepared in respect of those activities of
the reporting unit and has been provided to the members of the reporting unit with
copies of the accounts.

[5] I am satisfied that the financial affairs of the reporting unit in respect of the financial
year ending 30 June 2014, are encompassed by the financial affairs of the Association and |
certify accordingly under s.269(2)(a) of the Act.
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THE AUSTRALIAN WORKERS’ UNION OF EMPLOYEES, QUEENSLAND 2013/2014 OFFICE

HOLDERS AND EXECUTIVE AS AT 30/6/14

SECRETARY

Ben Swan
GPO Box 88
Brishane 4001

Union Official

PRESIDENT

Rodney Stockham
PO Box 1035
Townsville 4810

Union Official

VICE PRESIDENTS
{Honorary) 3

Keith Ballin
PO Box 1057
Bundaberg 4670

Union Official

Steve Baker
GPO Box 13
Brisbane 4001

Union Official

Marina Willlams
PO Box 10212 Adelaide Street
Brisbane 4000

Union Official

CENTRAL DISTRICT

CENTRAL DISTRICT SECRETARY

Keith Ballin
PO Box 1057
Bundaberg 4670

Union Official

EXECUTIVE MEMBER
(Honorary)

Tony Beers
PO Box 5097
Gladstone 4680

Union Official

ORGANISERS

Tony Beers
PO Box 5097
Gladstone 4680

Union Official

Zac Beers
PO Box 5097
Gladstone 4680

Union Official

Craig Sell
PO Box 289
Rockhampton 4700

Union Official

Gavin Duncan
PO Box 1057
Bundaberg 4670

Union Official

FAR NORTHERN DISTRICT

FAR NORTHERN DISTRICT
SECRETARY

Peter Gunsberger
PO Box 854
Cairns 4870

Union Official

EXECUTIVE MEMBER
{Honorary)

Peter Gunsberger
PO Box 854
Cairns 4870

Union Official

ORGANISER

Lisa Harrison
PO Box 854
Cairns 4870

Union Official

Stephen Christian
PO Box 854
Cairns 4870

Union Official

Sharon Winn
PO Box 854
Cairns 4870

Union Official




David Fixter
PO Box 854
Cairns 4870

Union Official

NORTHERN DISTRICT

NORTHERN DISTRICT SECRETARY

Rodney Stockham
PO Box 1035
Townsville 4810

Union Official

EXECUTIVE MEMBERS
{Honorary)

Paul Robertson
PO Box 115
Mackay 4740

Union Official

ORGANISERS

Luke Mangano
PO Box 1035
Townsville 4810

Union Official

Juli Mann
PO Box 1035
Townsville 4810

Union Official

Daryl Harrison
PO Box 50
Mount Isa 4825

Union Official

Robert Carson
PO Box 50
Mount Isa 4825

Union Official

Paul Robertson
PO Box 115
Mackay 4740

Union Official

Deanne Screen
PO Box 115
Mackay 4740

Union Official

Damian Hale
GPO Box 3845
Darwin 0801

Union Official

SOUTHERN DISTRICT

SOUTHERN DISTRICT SECRETARY

Steve Baker
GPO Box 13
Brishane 4001

Union Official

EXECUTIVE MEMBER
(Honorary)

Don Bulow
C/- GPO Box 13
Brisbane 4001

Concrete Laborer

ORGANISERS

Judy Jones
GPO Box 13
Brisbane 4001

Union Official

Matt Sellars
GPO Box 13
Brisbane 4001

Union Official

James Martin

Union Official

Brenton Hill
GPO Box 13
Brisbane 4001

Union Official

David Groessler
GPO Box 13
Brisbane 4001

Union Official

Walter Boulton
C/- GPO Box 13
Brisbane 4001

Union Official




Terry Cross

SOUTH WESTERN DISTRICT

SOUTH WESTERN DISTRICT
SECRETARY

Tracey Sharpe
PO Box 508
Toowoomba 4350

Union Cfficial

EXECUTIVE MEMBER
(Honorary)

Tracey Sharpe
PO Box 508
Toowoomba 4350

Union Official

Cathy Janetzki
PO Box 508
Toowoomba 4350

Union Official

Jack Liston
PO Box 508
Toowoomba 4350

Union Official

WESTERN DISTRICT

WESTERN DISTRICT SECRETARY

Tim Sullivan
PO Box 240
Longreach 4730

Union Official

EXECUTIVE MEMBER
{Honorary)

Tim Sullivan
PC Box 240
Longreach 4730

Union Official

METALS AND CONSTRUCT!ON
DIVISION

M&C DISTRICT SECRETARY

Troy Spence
GPO Box 88
Brisbane 4001

Union Official

EXECUTIVE MEMBER
(Honarary)

Troy Spence
GPO Box 88
Brisbane 4001

Union Official

Barry Martin
GPO Box 88
Brishane 4001

Union Official

Bede Harding
GPO Box 88
Brisbane 4001

Union Official

Jlim Wilson
GPO Box 88
Brisbane 4001

Union Official
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The Australian Workers' Union of Employees, Queensland and

The Australian Workers' Union, Queensland

ABN: &4 942 636 069

Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

income

Employee benefits expense
Depraciation and amortisation expense
QOther operating expenses

Interest charges

Profit/(Loss) before Income tax
Income tax expense

Profit before disposal of assets
Gain/{loss) on disposal of assets

Loss on disposal of assets
Profit for tha year
Other comprehensive income, net of income tax

Total comprehensive incomef(loss) attributable to
members of the Union

2014 2013
Note $ $
2 14,721,801 14,212,730
(7,348,062) (7,175,359)
(318,813} (282,974)
(7,227,677)  (6,260,668)
{204,025) (70,978)
(376,776) 422,751
{376,776} 422,751
36,146 -
{27,415) (7,012)
(368,045) 415,739
{368.045) 415,739

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
















































The Australian Workers' Union of Employees, Queensland and
The Australian Workers' Union, Queensland

ABN: 54 942 636 069

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

15 Remuneration & Benefits for Highest Paid Officers

Salary
including
Super Board Fees Non-cash
payments Paid Benefits Total
$ $ $ $
126,357 16,669 - 142,026
113,595 - - 113,595
105,893 7,330 - 113,223
110,336 - - 110,336
106,492 - - 106,492
106,086 - . 106,086
105,964 - - 105,964
105,561 - - 105,561
105,561 - - 105,561
96,149 - - 96,149

16 Peclitical Party Affiliation Fees

During the 2014 financial year the Union paid affiliation fees to Australia Laber Party amcunting to $188,090.

17 Spending for Political Purposes

Authorised
Amount of by
Spending Expenditure
Nature of Spending $ Expenditure refates to Ballot
AWU National Office Donation 15,000 Federal Election
ALP Qid Donation 161,500 Federal Election Fundraising
ALP Northem Temtory Branch Donation 7,500 Senate candidate campaign
ALP Oxey FEC Function & events 809 Board reom lunch - Federal election
ALP State of Queensland Party Units Function & events 2,540 Atlend dinner hosted by Yvette D'Ath
2013 Deagon community picnic race
Deagan MEC of the ALP Function & events 1,091 day
ALP Qid Meeting expense 4,218
ALP Northern Territory Meeting expense 227 2014 Conference Fees
ALP QId Function & events 273 Labor forum Dinner
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